

SOC APPROVALS

November 12, 2025

The following proposals were approved at the November 12, 2025 meeting of the Subcommittee on Undergraduate Academic Courses (SOC).

FACULTY OF ARTS AND HUMANITIES

DEPARTMENT OF VISUAL ARTS

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

STUDIO ART 2509A/B PAINTING EXPLORATIONS

Course Description

An introductory studio course exploring a range of historical and contemporary approaches to painting. Students experiment with a variety of materials and working methods to investigate painting's expressive and creative potential.

Antirequisite(s): Studio Art 2620A/B, Studio Art 2621.

Extra Information: 4 studio hours, lecture, blended, or online format.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**STUDIO ART 3612A/B
DRAWING**

Course Description

This advanced drawing course investigates drawing as a method of perceptual, technical, conceptual and critical problem solving and as a basis for exploration with other media and disciplines.

Antirequisite(s): Studio Art 3611.

Prerequisite(s): Studio Art 2610A/B, or permission of the Department.

Extra Information: 4 studio hours, lecture, blended or online format. Note: Some sessions may involve drawing from the nude as part of the curriculum of the course. Students may request an alternate assignment. Priority will be given to students registered in a Visual Arts program.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**STUDIO ART 3624A/B
PAINTING**

Course Description

This advanced painting course investigates the history, materiality, and visual language of painting. It emphasizes rigorous experimentation with material-specific processes and the individuation of students' pictorial language.

Antirequisite(s): Studio Art 3623.

Prerequisite(s): Studio Art 2620A/B or Studio Art 2621 or permission of the Department.

Extra Information: 4 studio hours, lecture, blended or online format. Note: Some sessions may involve drawing from the nude as part of the curriculum of the course. Students may request an alternate assignment. Priority will be given to students registered in a Visual Arts program.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**STUDIO ART 3674A/B
ALTERNATIVE APPROACHES TO CREATIVE METHODS**

Course Description

A studio course that encourages students to delve deeply into the conceptual potential of materials and methods in contemporary artmaking. Complementary to discipline specific courses, this course is designed to advance students' methodological approaches and hone their sense of voice and positionality as artists. Self-reflective engagement is emphasized.

Prerequisite(s): ~~Registration in years 3 or 4 of a Department of Visual Arts module~~ **Studio Art 1601, Studio Art 1605**, or permission of the Department.

Extra Information: 4 studio hours, lecture, blended or online format. Priority will be given to students registered in a Visual Arts program.

Course Weight: 0.50

IVEY BUSINESS SCHOOL

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

HBA/HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN GEOGRAPHY AND ENVIRONMENT

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the Department of Geography **and Environment** in the Faculty of Social Science.

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a BA in Honours Business Administration (HBA) and a BA Honours Specialization in Geography. In Years 1 and 2 students are registered in the Department of Geography **and Environment** and follow the normal curriculum for the Honours Specialization module. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5. Admission requirements for the combined program are outlined below.

Admission Requirements

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years students must complete a minimum of 10.0 courses including Business Administration 2257. In Year 1 they must complete the admission requirements as specified in the current Academic Calendar for entry into the Honours Specialization module offered by the Department of Geography **and Environment**.

In Year 2 students must enrol in the Honours Specialization in the Department of Geography **and Environment** and satisfy the minimum progression requirements for the second year of that Honours Specialization. Under certain conditions, students who enrol in a Major in Geography in Year 2 may be eligible for admission to the combined degree program, but they will have to transfer into an Honours Specialization module in the Department of Geography **and Environment** if they are accepted into the combined degree program. Such a transfer is possible only if they have received the marks needed to transfer into an Honours Specialization module. Students must be able to complete all of the requirements of the combined degree program for that module, including breadth requirements and completion of essays.

In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They also must gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process. In addition, students must normally attain a minimum weighted average of 78% in the first year of the HBA.

Students apply for the combined degree program during the HBA 1 year, typically

their third year of University. Applications to the combined program must be made in writing to the Undergraduate Program Advisor of the Department of Geography **and Environment** and to the HBA Program Office by the deadlines published by the Richard Ivey School of Business. Entrance to the program may be limited.

Module/Program Information

Year 1

Completion of 5.0 first-year courses with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 75% and no mark below 60% in the 3.0 principal courses.

Principal Courses:

1.0 course* from Geography 1100, Geography 1200A/B, Geography 1300A/B, Geography 1400F/G, Geography 1500F/G, Environmental Science 1021F/G, (with Geography 1400F/G recommended).
2.0 courses numbered 1000-1999.

* If upper-year students have not completed 1.0 courses listed above, they may select one or two courses from: Geography 2131A/B, Geography 2132A/B, Geography 2133A/B, Geography 2152F/G, and/or Geography 2153A/B in making up the 1.0 admission requirement, as long as they were completed with a grade of at least 60%. Senior qualifying entry course(s) cannot be counted for subsequent program credit.

Students are required in Year 1 to take at least 1.0 course from either Category B or C. However, it is strongly recommended that students include in their Year 1 course selection 1.0 course from Category B and 1.0 from Category C in order to meet the breadth requirements of their degree.

Year 2

5.0 courses:

0.5 course: Geography 2210A/B* (must be taken in Year 2)
2.5 courses from the following 3.0 geography courses:

0.5 course: Geography 2220A/B.
1.0 course from: Geography 2411F/G, Geography 2420A/B, Geography 2430A/B, Geography 2460F/G.
1.0 course from: Geography 2310A/B, Geography 2320A/B, Geography 2330A/B.
0.5 course from: Geography courses numbered 2000 to 2099.

1.0 course: Business Administration 2257.

1.0 course: Option (must be a course from Category B or C if not completed in Year 1).

* In cases where an antirequisite statistics course has been taken instead, then an additional 0.5 course numbered 2200 or above in Geography must be taken to make up the 9.0 courses required for the module.

Year 3 (HBA1)

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

All students will take: Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K, Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

Years 4 and 5 (HBA and Geography)

HBA: Requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5 (except that Business Administration 4569 must be taken in Year 4)

5.0 courses:

0.5 course: (International Perspective Requirement) Business Administration 4505A/B.

0.5 course: (Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement) At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.

0.5 course: Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B.

1.0 course: (Applied Project Requirement) Business Administration 4569.

2.5 additional business elective courses. (These must be taken at the Business School and cannot be substituted with other Western courses.)

Years 4 and 5 (Geography)

6.0 courses:

The remaining **0.5 course** from the following 3.0 geography courses:

0.5 course: Geography 2220A/B.

1.0 course from: Geography 2411F/G, Geography 2420A/B, Geography 2430A/B, Geography 2460F/G.

1.0 course from: Geography 2310A/B, Geography 2320A/B, Geography 2330A/B.

0.5 course from: Geography courses numbered 2000 to 2099.

1.5 courses: Geography 3210A/B, Geography 3250A/B, Geography 4000A/B.

4.0 courses: Geography at the 2200 level or above, at least 2.0 of which must be at the 3000 level or above, with ~~Geography 3000Y~~ **Geography 4001Y** or ~~Geography 3001F/G~~ **Geography 4002F/G** strongly recommended. (Students wishing to pursue Graduate Studies are encouraged to take Geography 4900E or Geography 4901E.)

Note: To complete the program in five years, students must take a 1.0 course overload in Year 4 or Year 5, or a 0.5 overload in both Years 4 and 5.

Program Requirements

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

Progression

Students in the combined program must meet the progression standards of each Faculty or School. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000- level HBA courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 75% in their Honours Specialization module and meet all other progression requirements of the Honours Specialization module in which they are enrolled.

Failure to Meet Progression Standards

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Geography program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a combined degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or combined programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

Dean's Honour List

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In Social Science, students will be considered for the Dean's Honour List in the usual way in Years 1 and 2, and at the end of Year 5 by considering all Social Science courses that have been taken in Years 4 and 5. Students who take at least 2.0 Social Science courses in Year 4 will be considered for the Dean's Honour List in that year on the basis of those courses.

Graduation

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a BA with Honours Specialization in Geography and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

Graduation with Distinction

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

International Exchange Programs

Students in the combined HBA/Geography degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Geography Undergraduate Program Advisor.

Fees

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs. Contact the Office of the Registrar for details.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

HBA/HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN URBAN DEVELOPMENT

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the Department of Geography **and Environment** in the Faculty of Social Science.

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a BA in Honours Business Administration (HBA) and a BA with Honours Specialization in Urban Development (Geography). In Years 1 and 2 students are registered in the Department of Geography **and Environment** and follow the normal curriculum for the Urban Development module. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5. Admission requirements for the combined program are outlined below.

Admission Requirements

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years students must complete a minimum of 10.0 courses including Business Administration 2257. In Year 1 they must complete the admission requirements as specified in the current Academic Calendar for entry into the Honours Specialization module offered by the Department of Geography **and Environment**.

In Year 2 students must enrol in the Honours Specialization in Urban Development in the Department of Geography **and Environment** and satisfy the minimum progression requirements for the second year of that Honours Specialization. Under certain conditions, students who in Year 2 enrol in a Major in Geography may be eligible for admission to the combined degree program, but they will have to transfer into the Honours Specialization in Urban Development module in the Department of Geography **and Environment** if they are accepted into the combined degree program. Such a transfer is only possible if they have received the marks needed to transfer into the Honours Specialization module and are able to complete all the requirements of the combined degree program for the module.

In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They must also gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process. In addition, students must normally attain a minimum weighted average of 78% in the first year of the HBA.

Students apply for the combined degree program during the HBA 1 year, typically their third year of University. Applications to the combined program must be made in writing to the Undergraduate Program Advisor of the Department of

Geography **and Environment** and to the HBA Program Office by the deadlines published by the Richard Ivey School of Business. Entrance to the program may be limited.

Module/Program Information

Year 1

Completion of 5.0 first-year courses with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 75% and no mark below 60% in the 3.0 principal courses.

Principal Courses:

1.0 course* from Geography 1100, Geography 1200A/B, Geography 1300A/B, Geography 1400F/G, Geography 1500F/G, Environmental Science 1021F/G, (with Geography 1400F/G recommended).

1.0 course from Economics 1021A/B and Economics 1022A/B.

1.0 course numbered 1000-1999.

* If upper-year students have not completed 1.0 courses listed above, they may select one or two courses from: Geography 2131A/B, Geography 2132A/B, Geography 2133A/B, Geography 2152F/G, Geography 2153A/B, Geography 2160A/B, and/or Geography 2162A/B in making up the 1.0 admission requirement, as long as they were completed with a grade of at least 60%. Senior qualifying entry course(s) cannot be counted for subsequent program credit.

Students are required in Year 1 to take at least 1.0 course from either Category B or C. However, it is strongly recommended that students include in their Year 1 course selection 1.0 course from Category B and 1.0 from Category C in order to meet the breadth requirements of their degree.

Recommended Category B courses include but are not limited to: Classical Studies 1000, World Literatures and Cultures 1030, Digital Humanities 1011A/B, Art History 1641A/B, Art History 1642A/B.

Recommended Category C courses include but are not limited to: Actuarial Science 1021A/B; **Mathematics 0110A/B, Mathematics 1600A/B; Calculus 1000A/B, Calculus 1301A/B or Calculus 1501A/B, the former Calculus 1100A/B; Computer Science 1025A/B, Computer Science 1026A/B, Computer Science 1032A/B.

**If Economics 2150A/B or Economics 2151A/B are selected in the module, one of MVC4U, Mathematics 0110A/B, Calculus 1000A/B, Calculus 1500A/B, Mathematics 1225A/B is required for registration.

Year 2

5.0 courses:

1.0 course: Business Administration 2257.

2.0 courses: Geography 2210A/B*, Geography 2220A/B, Geography 2420A/B, Geography 2460F/G.

1.0 course from: Geography 2160A/B, Geography 2162A/B, Geography 2230A/B, Geography 2310A/B, Geography 2320A/B, Geography 2330A/B, Geography 2411F/G or Indigenous Studies 2601F/G, Geography 2430A/B.

1.0 course from: Anthropology 2201F/G; Comparative Literature and Culture 2129A/B, Digital Humanities 2220A/B; Economics 2150A/B, Economics 2151A/B, Economics 2157F/G, Economics 2184A/B; MOS 2275A/B**; Political Science 2211E, Political Science 2236E, Political Science 2246E; Sociology 2279A/B, Sociology 2280A/B; Writing 2101F/G.

1.0 additional course from Category B or C (if not already completed in Year 1).

* In cases where an antirequisite statistics course has been taken instead, an additional 0.5 course numbered 2200 or above in Geography must be taken to make up the courses required for the module.

** Business Administration 4450A/B is an antirequisite.

Year 3 (HBA1)

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

All students will take: Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K, Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

Years 4 and 5 (HBA and Geography)

HBA: Requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5 (except that Business Administration 4569 must be taken in Year 4)

5.0 courses:

0.5 course: (International Perspective Requirement) Business Administration 4505A/B.

0.5 course: (Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement) At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.

0.5 course: Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B.

1.0 course: (Applied Project Requirement) Business Administration 4569.

2.5 additional business elective courses. (These must be taken at the Business School and cannot be substituted with other Western courses.)

* Recommended electives include but are not limited to: Business Administration 4450A/B, Business Administration 4439A/B, Business Administration 4443A/B, Business Administration 4486A/B, Business Administration 4554A/B, Business Administration 4565A/B, Business Administration 4567A/B, the former Business Administration 4455Q/R/S/T.

Geography: Requirements can normally be taken over Year 4 or 5 (as long as prerequisites are met)

6.0 courses:

2.5 courses: Geography 3461F/G, Geography 3462F/G, Geography 3464F/G***, Geography 3465F/G, Geography 4000A/B.

1.0 course from: Geography 3210A/B, Geography 3211A/B, Geography 3222A/B, Geography 3225A/B, Geography 3226A/B, Geography 3250A/B, the former Geography 3223A/B, the former Geography 3421A/B.

2.5 courses from*: Art History 2670F/G, Digital Humanities 2220A/B, Economics 2150A/B, Economics 2151A/B, Economics 2157F/G, Economics 2184A/B, ~~Geography 3000Y or Geography 3001F/G~~, Geography 3210A/B, Geography 3211A/B, Geography 3222A/B, Geography 3225A/B, Geography 3226A/B, Geography 3250A/B, Geography 3354A/B, Geography 3414A/B, Geography 3416F/G, Geography 3443F/G, Geography 3463F/G, **Geography 4001Y or Geography 4002F/G**, Geography 4460F/G, Geography 4900E, MOS 2275A/B**, Political Science 2211E, Political Science 2236E, Political Science 2246E, Political Science 3363F/G, Political Science 3364F/G, Sociology 2279A/B, Sociology 2280A/B, Writing 2101F/G, **the former Geography 3000Y, the former Geography 3001F/G**, the former Geography 3223A/B, the former Geography 3421A/B.

* If any of these courses have been taken in earlier sections, they do not count twice toward completion of the module.

** Business Administration 4450A/B is an antirequisite.

*** Business Administration 4613A/B is an antirequisite.

Note: To complete the program in five years, students must take a 1.0 course overload in Year 4 or Year 5, or a 0.5 overload in both Years 4 and 5.

Note: Students wishing to pursue Graduate Studies are encouraged to take Geography 4900E.

Program Requirements

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

Progression

Students in the combined program must meet the progression standards of each Faculty or School. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000-level HBA courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 75% in their Honours Specialization in Urban Development module and meet all other progression requirements of the module.

Failure to Meet Progression Standards

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Geography program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a combined degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or combined programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

Dean's Honour List

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In Social Science, students will be considered for the Dean's Honour List in the

usual way in Years 1 and 2, and at the end of Year 5 by considering all Social Science courses that have been taken in Years 4 and 5. Students who take at least 2.0 Social Science courses in Year 4 will be considered for the Dean's Honour List in that year on the basis of those courses.

Graduation

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a BA with an Honours Specialization in Urban Development (Geography) and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

Graduation with Distinction

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

International Exchange Programs

Students in the combined HBA/Urban Development degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Geography Undergraduate Program Advisor.

Fees

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs. Contact the Office of the Registrar for details.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

HBA/BACHELOR OF MUSIC (HONOURS)

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the Don Wright Faculty of Music.

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a Bachelor of Music (Honours) and a BA in Honours Business Administration (HBA). In Years 1 and 2, students are registered in the Bachelor of Music (Honours) in the Don Wright Faculty of Music and follow the normal curriculum for this degree. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5.

Admission Requirements

Students must meet normal admission requirements for both programs. Normally, students apply to the HBA program during their second year in the Bachelor of Music (Honours). Students applying to the Ivey Business School's Advanced Entry Opportunity (AEO) are also eligible to be considered for the combined program. Admission is competitive and limited.

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years, students must complete all requirements for Years 1 and 2 of the Bachelor of Music (Honours), including Business Administration 2257. In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They must also gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process.

Program Requirements

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

Module/Program Information

Year 1

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

3.5 courses: Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

A weighted average of at least 70% and no mark less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in the non-Music course.

Year 2

Ensemble: One or more of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

3.0 courses: Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

1.0 course from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course: Business Administration 2257.

Year 3 – HBA1

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

All students will take: Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

Years 4 and 5 (5.0 Music courses and 6.0 HBA2 credits).

Music (5.0 Music courses must be taken over Years 4 or 5).

From Year 3 of the BMus (Honours) program:

0.5 course: Music 3924Y and Ensemble* (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913) or 0.5 music elective.

1.5 courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 3924Y and Music 4924Y.

From Year 4 of the BMus (Honours) Program:

0.5 course: Music 4924Y and Ensemble* (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911,

Music 4912, Music 4913), or 0.5 music elective.

1.0 course at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

1.5 courses from the Faculty of Music.

Note: In the Bachelor of Music (Honours) program, no more than 8.0 courses **taken** may be numbered 1000 to 1999. A maximum of 1.0 course from ~~Music 2171A/B/Y~~, Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, ~~and~~ Music 2801A/B **and the former Music 2171A/B/Y** may be counted toward the ~~program~~ **elective courses 'from the Faculty of Music'. Additional courses from this list taken beyond the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty'.**

HBA2

Years 4 and 5 (HBA requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5 – except Business 4569 must be taken in Year 4).

2.5 courses:

- International Perspective Requirement: Business Administration 4505A/B (0.5 course).
- Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement: At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.
- Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B (0.5 course).
- Applied Project Requirement: Business Administration 4569 (1.0 course).

3.5 additional business electives.

Progression

Students in the combined program must meet the normal progression standards for both the Bachelor of Music (Honours) and HBA programs. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000-level HBA2 courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 70% with no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

Failure to Meet Progression Standards

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Bachelor of Music (Honours) program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a concurrent degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or concurrent programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

Dean's Honour List

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In the Don Wright Faculty of Music, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during Years 1, 2, 4 and 5, based on achieving an average of 80% or higher, with no failed courses, during that academic year.

Graduation

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a Bachelor of Music (Honours) and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

Graduation with Distinction

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

International Exchange Programs

Students in the combined HBA/Music degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Don Wright Faculty of Music.

Fees

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs. Contact the Office of the Registrar for details.

FACULTY OF HEALTH SCIENCES

BRESCIA SCHOOL OF FOOD AND NUTRITIONAL SCIENCES

Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be withdrawn:

FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 2226A/B PARENTING AND INTERGENERATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS

Course Description

Using parenting theory and research, this course investigates the topic of parenting in-depth, exploring relevant topics such as infant development, parent-child communication, gender socialization, discipline, and more.

Prerequisite(s): Any 0.5 course from any department in the Faculty of Health Sciences, the Department of Anthropology, the Department of Gender, Sexuality and Women's Studies, the Department of Psychology or the Department of Sociology; or permission of the Department.

Extra Information: 3 lecture/tutorial hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be withdrawn:

FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 3325A/B DIVERSITY AND CANADIAN FAMILIES

Course Description

This course examines contemporary diversity as it impacts individuals and families. Its psychosocial approach enables students to think through their own perspectives on race, ethnicity, religion, ability, sexual and gender identity, and more in preparation for working with people from diverse backgrounds.

Prerequisite(s): Any 0.5 course at the 2000-level or higher from any department in the Faculty of Health Sciences, the Department of Anthropology, the Department of Gender, Sexuality and Women's Studies, the Department of Psychology or the Department of Sociology; or permission of the Department.

Extra Information: 3 lecture/tutorial hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 3226A/B
PARENTING AND INTERGENERATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS**

(Short Title: Parenting & Intergen. Rel.)

Course Description

Using parenting theory and research, this course investigates the topic of parenting in-depth, exploring relevant topics such as infant development, parent-child communication, gender socialization, discipline, and more.

Antirequisite(s): The former Family Studies and Human Development 2226A/B.

Prerequisite(s): Any 0.5 course at the 2000-level or higher from any department in the Faculty of Health Sciences, the Department of Anthropology, the Department of Gender, Sexuality and Women's Studies, the Department of Psychology or the Department of Sociology; or permission of the Department.

Extra Information: 3 lecture/tutorial hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 4325A/B
DIVERSITY AND CANADIAN FAMILIES**

(Short Title: Diversity & Canadian Families)

Course Description

This course examines contemporary diversity as it impacts individuals and families. Its psychosocial intersectional approach enables students to think through their own perspectives on race, ethnicity, religion, ability, sexual and gender identity, and more in preparation for working with people from diverse backgrounds.

Antirequisite(s): The former Family Studies and Human Development 3325A/B.

Prerequisite(s): Any 0.5 course at the 3000-level or higher from any department in the Faculty of Health Sciences, the Department of Anthropology, the Department of Gender, Sexuality and Women's Studies, the Department of Psychology or the Department of Sociology; or permission of the Department.

Extra Information: 3 lecture/tutorial hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

SCHOOL OF HEALTH STUDIES

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN HEALTH SCIENCES

Admission Requirements

Completion of first-year requirements with no failures. Students must have a minimum grade of 70% in each of Health Sciences 1001A/B, Health Sciences 1002A/B, Health Sciences 1111A/B, and Health Sciences 1300A/B; a minimum grade of 60% in each of Biology 1001A and Biology 1002B; and a minimum cumulative average of 70%.

Students are advised to consult with an academic counsellor prior to selecting their first-year courses to ensure that the appropriate prerequisite courses have been selected to allow registration in courses at the 2000 level or above.

Module

9.0 courses:

3.5 courses (to be taken in second year): Health Sciences 2250A/B, Health Sciences 2400A/B, Health Sciences 2610F/G, Health Sciences 2700A/B, Health Sciences 2711A/B, Health Sciences 2800.

0.5 course (to be taken in third year): Health Sciences 3801A/B.

0.5 course in Health Research Methods from: Health Sciences 3811F/G, Health Sciences 3840A/B, Health Sciences 3910F/G, Health Sciences 4200F/G, Health Sciences 4205A/B, Health Sciences 4240F/G, Health Sciences 4250A/B.

0.5 course in Ecological Health from: Health Sciences 3010F/G, Health Sciences 3025A/B, Health Sciences 3071A/B, Health Sciences 3240A/B, Health Sciences 3250F/G, Health Sciences 3650F/G, Health Sciences 3704A/B, Health Sciences 4220F/G, Health Sciences 4505F/G, Health Sciences 4615F/G.

~~3.0~~ **4.0 courses** from: Rehabilitation Sciences, Health Sciences, or Communication Sciences and Disorders at the 2010-level or above (not otherwise selected).

~~1.0 course from: Health Sciences at the 4000-level.~~

Note: a maximum of 12.0 credits (at the 1000-level or higher) from amongst Health Sciences, Rehabilitation Sciences, or Communication Sciences and Disorders courses, may be taken in any Specialization or Honours Specialization degree or module in the School of Health Studies.

All Honours Specialization modules in Health Sciences require the successful completion of at least 1.0 4000-level Health Sciences credits prior to graduation.

SCHOOL OF KINESIOLOGY

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

KINESIOLOGY 1080A/B

~~INTRODUCTION TO PSYCHOMOTOR BEHAVIOUR~~ **INTRODUCTION TO
SENSORIMOTOR NEUROSCIENCE**

(Short Title: Sensorimotor Neuroscience)

Course Description

Fundamental concepts and theories related to movement learning and control will be introduced. The material will address many of the factors that affect the production of motor behaviour. Students will learn about the basis for movement skill and variables that can be used to improve level of skill.

~~Prerequisite(s):~~

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours, 3 laboratory hours biweekly.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

KINESIOLOGY 4360A/B

~~CARDIORESPIRATORY SUPPORT OF EXERCISE METABOLISM~~
INTEGRATIVE EXERCISE PHYSIOLOGY

(Short Title: Integrative Ex Phys)

Course Description

~~This course will examine the interaction of muscle~~ **A study of how muscular, neural, and the** cardio-vascular and respiratory systems **are integrated during exercise to regulate blood pressure and blood flow in health and disease.** ~~Building upon content from Kinesiology 2230A/B and Kinesiology 3360A/B, this course will focus on cardiorespiratory control and coupling to muscle metabolism.~~ Students will develop a deeper understanding of how these physiological systems **are** integrated ~~d in response~~ to **support adaptation to** exercise.

Prerequisite(s): Kinesiology 2230A/B, ~~Kinesiology 3360A/B~~, Kinesiology 3330F/G.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN CLINICAL KINESIOLOGY

For students admitted to the Honours Specialization in Clinical Kinesiology in September 2022 and prior, please refer to the 2021 Academic Calendar.

Admission Requirements

Completion of first year requirements with no course grade less than 60% and with an average of at least 70%.

Students must achieve an average of 70% in the following 3.0 principal courses, with no mark less than 60%:

- Kinesiology 1050A/B;
- Kinesiology 1060A/B;
- Kinesiology 1070A/B;
- Kinesiology 1080A/B; and
- Physiology 1021.

Note: The Honours Specialization in Clinical Kinesiology is a limited enrolment program. More competitive academic standing may be required when demand exceeds enrolment capacity. In the event demand exceeds enrollment capacity a student's term average will also be taken into consideration. Admission to the module is restricted to students registered in the School of Kinesiology.

Module

10.0 courses:

2.0 courses: Kinesiology 2032A/B, Kinesiology 2230A/B, Kinesiology 2236A/B (with a minimum grade of 70%), Kinesiology 2241A/B. ***Must be taken in second year.***

1.0 course from: Kinesiology 2900-2999. ***Must be taken in second year.***

0.5 course: Kinesiology 3032A/B.

1.0 course: Kinesiology 3412A/B, Kinesiology 3402A/B. ***Must be completed in third year.***

1.0 course: Kinesiology 4412A/B, Kinesiology 4422A/B. ***Must be completed in fourth year.***

3.0 courses: Kinesiology 3222A/B, Kinesiology 3336A/B, Kinesiology 3337A/B, Kinesiology 4433A/B, Kinesiology 4590.

0.5 course from: Kinesiology 2292F/G, Kinesiology 3490F/G.

1.0 course from: Kinesiology 2276F/G, Kinesiology 3330F/G, Kinesiology 3339A/B, Kinesiology 3341A/B, Kinesiology 3353A/B, Kinesiology 3457A/B, Kinesiology 3476F/G, Kinesiology 3480A/B, Kinesiology 3495A/B, Kinesiology 3550A/B, Kinesiology 4276F/G, Kinesiology 4259F/G, Kinesiology 4420A/B,

Kinesiology 4431A/B, Kinesiology 4437A/B, Kinesiology 4477A/B, Kinesiology 4480A/B, Kinesiology 4520A/B, Kinesiology 4560A/B, the former Kinesiology 4432A/B.

Notes:

1. All Honours Specialization modules in Kinesiology require the successful completion of at least 1.0 4000-level Kinesiology credit prior to graduation.
2. A maximum of 14.0 Kinesiology credits may be taken in this degree.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN KINESIOLOGY – BA

For students admitted to the Honours Specialization in Kinesiology – BA in September 2022 and prior, please refer to the 2021 Academic Calendar.

Admission Requirements

Completion of first year requirements with no course grade less than 60% and with an average of at least 70%.

Students must achieve an average of 70% in the following 3.0 principal courses, with no mark less than 60%:

- Kinesiology 1050A/B;
- Kinesiology 1060A/B;
- Kinesiology 1070A/B;
- Kinesiology 1080A/B; and
- Physiology 1021.

Note: The Honours Specialization B.A. in Kinesiology is a limited enrolment program. More competitive academic standing may be required when demand exceeds enrolment capacity. Admission to the module is restricted to students registered in the School of Kinesiology.

Module

10.0 courses:

1.0 course: Kinesiology 2230A/B, Kinesiology 2241A/B (must be taken in second year).

1.0 course from: Kinesiology 2900-2999 (must be taken in second year).

0.5 course: Kinesiology 2032A/B (must be taken in second year).

0.5 course: Kinesiology 3032A/B.

1.0 Kinesiology course from: Kinesiology 2250A/B/F/G, Kinesiology 2263F/G, Kinesiology 2276F/G, Kinesiology 2292F/G, Kinesiology 3362F/G, Kinesiology 3388A/B, Kinesiology 3463F/G, Kinesiology 3476F/G, Kinesiology 3490F/G, Kinesiology 4259F/G, Kinesiology 4276F/G, Kinesiology 4465F/G.

1.0 course from: Kinesiology 2236A/B, Kinesiology 2250A/B/F/G, Kinesiology 2263F/G, Kinesiology 2276F/G, Kinesiology 2292F/G- (not previously selected).

5.0 additional Kinesiology courses at the 2000-level or above (a maximum of 1.0 course may be from Kinesiology 2900-2999).

For module planning guide go to the School of Kinesiology website:
<http://www.uwo.ca/fhs/kin/>

Note: All Honours Specialization modules in Kinesiology require the successful completion of at least 1.0 4000-level Kinesiology credits prior to graduation.

Note: A maximum of 14.0 Kinesiology Credits may be taken in this degree.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN KINESIOLOGY – BSc

For students admitted to the Honours Specialization in Kinesiology - BSc in September 2022 and prior, please refer to the 2021 Academic Calendar.

Admission Requirements

Completion of first year requirements with no course grade less than 60% and with an average of at least 70%.

Students must achieve an average of 70% in the following 3.0 principal courses, with no mark less than 60%:

- Kinesiology 1050A/B;
- Kinesiology 1060A/B;
- Kinesiology 1070A/BB;
- Kinesiology 1080A/B; **and**
- Physiology 1021

Students are also required to complete 1.0 courses (within a single subject area) from the subject areas of Biology, Chemistry, Physics, Mathematics as follows:

- Biology 1001A ~~or Biology 1201A~~ and Biology 1002B ~~or Biology 1202B~~;
- Chemistry 1301A/B and Chemistry 1302A/B;
- Calculus 1000A/B, Calculus 1301A/B, Calculus 1500A/B, Calculus 1501A/B, Applied Mathematics 1201A/B, Mathematics 1120A/B, Mathematics 1225A/B, Mathematics 1228A/B, Mathematics 1229A/B, Mathematics 1600A/B.
- Physics 1101A/B or Physics 1201A/B or the former Physics 1028A/B or the former Physics 1301A/B or Physics 1501A/B and Physics 1102A/B or Physics 1202A/B or the former Physics 1029A/B or the former Physics 1302A/B or Physics 1502A/B.

Students may substitute Data Science 1000A/B for 0.5 course in Mathematics in fulfilling this requirement.

Note: The Honours Specialization in Kinesiology - BSc is a limited enrollment program. More competitive academic standing may be required when demand exceeds enrollment capacity. In the event demand exceeds enrollment capacity a student's term average will also be taken into consideration. Admission to the module is restricted to students registered in the School of Kinesiology.

Module

9.5 courses:

1.0 course: Kinesiology 2230A/B, Kinesiology 2241A/B (must be taken in second year).

1.0 course from: Kinesiology 2900 – 2999 (must be taken in second year).

0.5 course: Kinesiology 2032A/B (must be taken in second year).

0.5 course: Kinesiology 3032A/B.

0.5 course from: Kinesiology 3341A/B, Kinesiology 3343A/B, Kinesiology 3353A/B.

1.0 course: Kinesiology 3330F/G, Kinesiology 3337A/B.

1.0 course from: Kinesiology 3343A/B, Kinesiology 3353A/B, Kinesiology 4430F/G, Kinesiology 4431A/B, Kinesiology 4433A/B, Kinesiology 4490E, Kinesiology 4520A/B, the former Kinesiology 4432A/B (not previously selected).

1.0 Kinesiology course from: Kinesiology 2250A/B/F/G, Kinesiology 2263F/G, Kinesiology 2276F/G, Kinesiology 2292F/G, Kinesiology 3362F/G, Kinesiology 3388A/B, Kinesiology 3463F/G, Kinesiology 3476F/G, Kinesiology 3490F/G, Kinesiology 4259F/G, Kinesiology 4276F/G, Kinesiology 4465F/G.

0.5 course in Kinesiology at the 2000-level (not including Kinesiology 2900-2999).

2.5 additional Kinesiology courses at the 2000-level or above (a maximum of 1.0 course may be from Kinesiology 2900-2999).

For module planning guide go to the School of Kinesiology website:
<http://www.uwo.ca/fhs/kin/>

Notes:

1. Students in this module must select four full or equivalent science options from the 2100 level or above.

2. Up to 1.0 of the 4.0 Science credits may be at the 1000-level (within a single subject area), from the following list:

- Biology 1001A ~~or Biology 1201A~~ and Biology 1002B ~~or Biology 1202B~~;
- Chemistry 1301A/B and Chemistry 1302A/B;
- Calculus 1000A/B, Calculus 1301A/B, Calculus 1500A/B, Calculus 1501A/B, Applied Mathematics 1201A/B, Mathematics 1120A/B, Mathematics 1225A/B, Mathematics 1228A/B, Mathematics 1229A/B, Mathematics 1600A/B.
- Physics 1101A/B, or **Physics** 1201A/B or the former Physics 1028A/B or the former Physics 1301A/B or Physics 1501A/B and Physics 1102A/B, or **Physics** 1202A/B or the former Physics 1029A/B or the former Physics 1302A/B or Physics 1502A/B.

Students may substitute Data Science 1000A/B for 0.5 course in Mathematics in fulfilling this requirement.

3. Up to 2.0 of the 4.0 Science credits may be taken from the following list of Kinesiology courses (not previously selected). Kinesiology 3222A/B, Kinesiology 3339A/B, Kinesiology 3341A/B, Kinesiology 3343A/B, Kinesiology 3347A/B, Kinesiology 3353A/B, Kinesiology 3360A/B, Kinesiology 3480A/B, Kinesiology 4420A/B, Kinesiology 4430F/G, Kinesiology 4431A/B, Kinesiology 4434A/B, Kinesiology 4480A/B, Kinesiology 4490E, Kinesiology 4520A/B, the former Kinesiology 4432A/B.

4. Kinesiology students graduating with the Honours Bachelor of Science Degree Honours Specialization in Kinesiology are recognized as having met the University graduation policies pertaining to Science course requirements.

5. All Honours Specialization modules in Kinesiology require the successful completion of at least 1.0 4000-level Kinesiology credits prior to graduation.

6. A maximum of 14.0 Kinesiology Credits may be taken in this degree.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

MAJOR IN KINESIOLOGY

For students admitted to the Major in Kinesiology in September 2022 and prior, please refer to the 2021 Academic Calendar.

Admission Requirements

Completion of first year requirements with no course grade less than 60% and with an average of at least 70%.

Students must achieve an average of 70% in the following 3.0 principal courses, with no mark less than 60%:

- Kinesiology 1050A/B;
- Kinesiology 1060A/B;
- Kinesiology 1070A/B;
- Kinesiology 1080A/B; and
- Physiology 1021.

Note: The Bachelor degree in Kinesiology is a limited enrollment program. More competitive academic standing may be required when demand exceeds enrollment capacity. Admission to the module is restricted to students registered in the School of Kinesiology.

Module

7.0 courses:

1.0 course: Kinesiology 2230A/B, Kinesiology 2241A/B (must be taken in second year).

1.0 course from: Kinesiology 2900-2999 (must be taken in second year).

0.5 course: Kinesiology 2032A/B (must be taken in second year).

0.5 course: Kinesiology 3032A/B.

1.0 course from: Kinesiology 2250~~A/B~~**F/G**, Kinesiology 2263F/G, Kinesiology 2276F/G, Kinesiology 2292F/G, Kinesiology 2298A/B, Kinesiology 3362F/G, Kinesiology 3388A/B, Kinesiology 3398F/G, Kinesiology 3399F/G, Kinesiology 3463F/G, Kinesiology 3476F/G, Kinesiology 3490F/G, Dance 2270A/B, Dance 3371A/B, Dance 3372A/B.

1.0 course from: Kinesiology 2236A/B, Kinesiology 2250~~A/B~~**F/G**, Kinesiology 2263F/G, Kinesiology 2276F/G, Kinesiology 2292F/G, Kinesiology 2298A/B, Dance 2270A/B- (not previously selected).

2.0 additional Kinesiology courses at the 2000-level or above (a maximum of 1.0 may be from Kinesiology 2900-2999).

For module planning guide go to the School of Kinesiology website:
<http://www.uwo.ca/fhs/kin/>

Note: A maximum of 10.5 Kinesiology credits may be taken in this degree.

DON WRIGHT FACULTY OF MUSIC

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

BACHELOR OF MUSIC

Admission Requirements

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

Common First Year

Music 0914(if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

Module/Program Information

Second Year

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

Ensemble: One or more of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

1.0 course from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

Third Year

Music 3924Y and Ensemble* (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913), or 0.5 music elective.

1.5 courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

2.0 courses from any Faculty.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 3924Y.

Fourth Year

Music 4924Y and Ensemble* (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913), or 0.5 music elective.

1.0 courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

1.5 courses from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course from any Faculty.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 4924Y.

Note: In the Bachelor of Music program, no more than 8.0 courses **taken** may be numbered 1000 to 1999. A maximum of 1.0 course from ~~Music 2171A/B/Y~~, Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, ~~and~~ Music 2801A/B **and the former Music 2171A/B/Y** may be counted toward the ~~program~~ **elective courses 'from the Faculty of Music'**. **Additional courses from this list taken beyond the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty'.**

Progression Requirements

A student who at the end of an academic year has achieved a weighted average of at least 60% and a passing grade in each course of his or her approved program may progress to the next year.

The Dean may impose special conditions on future registration, or require a student to withdraw from the Faculty of Music, if that student:

1. fails to achieve the required average, or
2. fails one or more courses, or

3. fails to complete all first year requirements by the end of the second year of full-time registration.

A student required to withdraw from the Bachelor of Music program shall be required to withdraw from the University unless admitted to the Bachelor of Arts (Music) program or to another Faculty.

Graduation Requirements

Satisfactory completion of the required courses of the program, with an overall weighted average of at least 60%.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

BACHELOR OF MUSIC (HONOURS)

Admission Requirements

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

Common First Year

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

A weighted average of at least 70% and no mark less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in the non-Music course.

Module/Program Information

Second Year

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

Ensemble: One or more of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

1.0 course from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

Third Year

Music 3924Y and Ensemble* (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913) or 0.5 music elective.

1.5 courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

2.0 courses from any Faculty.

1.0 course from the Faculty other than Music.

*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 3924Y.

Fourth Year

Music 4924Y and Ensemble* (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913), or 0.5 music elective.

1.0 course at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

1.5 courses from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course from any Faculty.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 4924Y.

Note: In the Bachelor of Music program, no more than 8.0 courses **taken** may be numbered 1000 to 1999. A maximum of 1.0 course from ~~Music 2171A/B/Y~~, Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, ~~and~~ Music 2801A/B **and the former Music 2171A/B/Y** may be counted toward the ~~program elective~~ **courses 'from the Faculty of Music'. Additional courses from this list taken beyond the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty'.**

Progression and Graduation Requirements

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

BACHELOR OF MUSIC WITH HONOURS IN COMPOSITION

Admission Requirements

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

Common First Year

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

Admission Requirements after Year I Music

Completion of Common First Year with a weighted average of at least 70%, no mark less than 60% in Music courses, a passing grade in the non-Music courses, and a mark of at least 70% in Music 1641U and Music 1651A/B.

Admission requirements after Year II Music

Completion of all courses specified for Years I and II of the program; a cumulative weighted average of at least 70% in Music courses; no mark less than 60% in senior Music courses, a passing grade in each non-Music course; a mark of at least 70% in Music 1651A/B, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, and Music 2629.

Module/Program Information

Second Year

Music 2629, Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913. 1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

Third Year

Music 3629, Music 3649A/B, Music 3650A/B.

Music 3920 and Ensemble* (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913), or 1.0 music elective.

1.0 courses from Music 2695A/B, Music 3610A/B, ~~Music 3611A/B~~, Music 3620A/B, ~~Music 3621A/B~~, Music 3630A/B, Music 3641A/B/Y, Music 3696A/B/Y, **the former Music 3611A/B, the former Music 3621A/B.**

0.5 course or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

0.5 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 3920.

Fourth Year

Music 4629.

Music 4920 and Ensemble* (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913), or 1.0 music elective.

1.0 courses from: Music 2695A/B, Music 3610A/B, ~~Music 3611A/B~~, Music 3620A/B, ~~Music 3621A/B~~, Music 3630A/B, Music 3641A/B/Y, Music 3696A/B/Y, **the former Music 3611A/B, the former Music 3621A/B.**

1.0 course or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

* The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 4920.

Note: A maximum of 1.0 course from ~~Music 2171A/B/Y~~, Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, ~~and~~ Music 2801A/B **and the former Music 2171A/B/Y** may be counted toward the **program elective courses 'from the Faculty of Music'.** **Additional courses from this list taken beyond**

the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty'.

Progression

If a student fails to meet admission requirements, permission to proceed in an Honours Music program may be granted by the Dean on the recommendation of the Department concerned; special conditions on future registration may be imposed.

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

The continued registration of a student ineligible to progress to the subsequent year of an Honours program will be restricted to courses required to complete the general Bachelor of Music or the three-year BA (Music) degree.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

BACHELOR OF MUSIC WITH HONOURS IN MUSIC EDUCATION

Students who intend to qualify to teach with Ontario teaching certification at the Honours Specialist level should enroll in the Honours in Music Education program. From a wide range of electives students may choose a comprehensive program or may specialize in elementary or secondary school vocal or instrumental music.

Admission Requirements

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

Common First Year

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B*.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

*It is recommended that students who intend to register in the Bachelor of Music with Honours in Music Education program in year 2 are advised to elect Music 1802A/B as their 0.5 course from the Faculty of Music, and elect as both their 0.5 course from any Faculty and 0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music, courses in the same non -Music subject area that they intend to use as their second teachable subject.

Admission Requirements after Year I Music

Completion of Common First Year with a weighted average of at least 70%, no mark less than 60% in Music courses, a passing grade in non-Music courses, and a mark of at least 70% in Music 1802A/B.

Admission requirements after Year II Music

Completion of all courses specified for Years I and II of the program; a cumulative weighted average of at least 70% in Music courses; no mark less than 60% in senior Music courses, a passing grade in each non-Music course; a mark of at least 70% in Music 1802A/B and Music 2831A/B and Music 2832A/B or 1.0 course chosen from Music 2861A/B, Music 2871A/B, Music 2881A/B, Music 2873Q/R/S/T and Music 2880Q/R/S/T, or the former Music 2863Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2865Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2866Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2875Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2876Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2885Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2886Q/R/S/T.

Module/Program Information

Second Year

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

Music 2831A/B and Music 2832A/B, or 1.0 course chosen from Music 2861A/B, Music 2871A/B, Music 2881A/B, Music 2873Q/R/S/T and Music 2880Q/R/S/T, or the former Music 2863Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2865Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2866Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2875Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2876Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2885Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2886Q/R/S/T.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

Third Year

Music 3810A/B, Music 3832A/B/Y or Music 3841A/B, Music 3920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913.

1.5 courses or equivalent from the Faculty of Music*.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

Fourth Year

Music 4920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913.

1.0 course from Music 3812A/B/Y, Music 3852A/B/Y, Music 4811A/B, Music 4858A/B, Music 4841A/B, Music 4850A/B/Y.

0.5 course from Music 4840A/B or a Music Education elective.

1.0 course or equivalent from the Faculty of Music*.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

* At least 1.0 course from the Faculty of Music electives in Years 3 and 4 must be from the Department of Music Education.

Note: A maximum of 1.0 course ~~Music 2171A/B/Y~~, Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, ~~and~~ Music 2801A/B **and the former Music 2171A/B/Y** may be counted toward the ~~program~~ **elective courses 'from the Faculty of Music'**. **Additional courses from this list taken beyond the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty'**.

Guaranteed Admission of Music Education Graduates to Western's Faculty of Education.

Progression

If a student fails to meet admission requirements, permission to proceed in an Honours Music program may be granted by the Dean on the recommendation of the Department concerned; special conditions on future registration may be imposed.

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

The continued registration of a student ineligible to progress to the subsequent year of an Honours program will be restricted to courses required to complete the general Bachelor of Music or the three-year BA (Music) degree.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

BACHELOR OF MUSIC WITH HONOURS IN MUSIC RESEARCH

Admission Requirements

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

Common First Year

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

Admission Requirements after Year I Music

Completion of Common First Year with a weighted average of at least 70%, no mark less than 60% in Music courses, a passing grade in the non-Music courses, and a mark of at least 70% in Music 1651A/B and Music 1750F/G.

Admission Requirements after Year II Music

Completion of all courses specified for Years I and II of the program; a cumulative weighted average of at least 70% in Music courses; no mark less than 60% in senior Music courses, a passing grade in each non-Music course; a mark of at least 70% in Music 1651A/B, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 2750F/G.

Module/Program Information

Second Year

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

1.0 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

Third Year

Music 3649A/B, Music 3650A/B.

Music 3920 and Ensemble* (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913), or 1.0 course or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

1.5 courses from: Music 3600–3625, Music 3700–3799.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

Fourth Year

Music 4671A/B/Y.

Music 4920 and Ensemble* (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913), or 1.0 course or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

2.0 courses from: Music 3600–3625, Music 4630–4699, Music 3700–3799, Music 4730–4799.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

* The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 3920 or Music 4920.

Note: A maximum of 1.0 course **from** ~~Music 2171A/B/Y,~~ Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, ~~and~~ Music 2801A/B **and the former Music 2171A/B/Y** may be counted toward the ~~program~~ **elective courses 'from the Faculty of Music'.** **Additional courses from this list taken beyond the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty'.**

Progression

If a student fails to meet admission requirements, permission to proceed in an Honours Music program may be granted by the Dean on the recommendation of the Department concerned; special conditions on future registration may be imposed.

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

The continued registration of a student ineligible to progress to the subsequent year of an Honours program will be restricted to courses required to complete the general Bachelor of Music or the three-year BA (Music) degree.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

BACHELOR OF MUSIC WITH HONOURS IN PERFORMANCE (ORCHESTRAL INSTRUMENT)

Admission Requirements

For admission to this program, applicants must demonstrate at least a Level 10 Royal Conservatory of Music performance standard, or equivalent, in the orchestral instrument, as well as evidence of exceptional performing ability.

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

Common First Year

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.
Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.
0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.
0.5 from any Faculty.
0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

Admission Requirements after Year I Music

Completion of Common First Year with a weighted average of at least 70%, no mark less than 60% in Music courses, a passing grade in non-Music courses, and the recommendation of the department on the basis of a special audition.

Admission requirements after Year II Music

Completion of all courses specified for Years I and II of the program; a cumulative weighted average of at least 70% in Music courses; no mark less than 60% in senior Music courses, a passing grade in each non-Music course; a mark of at least 70% in Music 2920 and permission of the Department on the basis of a special audition.

Module/Program Information

Second Year

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2921.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

2.0 courses or equivalent, at least 1.0 of which must be from a Faculty other than Music.

Third Year

Music 3921, Music 3930A/B/Y and 0.5 course from the Department of Music Performance Studies.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913.

2.0 courses or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

Fourth Year

Music 4921, Music 4930A/B/Y and 0.5 course from the Department of Music Performance Studies.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913.

2.0 courses or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

Notes: Music electives must include 1.0 course or equivalent from Music 2973A, Music 2974B, Music 3976A/B/Y and Music 4976A/B/Y, and must also include Music 2975Y and Music 3975Y, or suitable alternatives approved by the chair of the Department of Music Performance Studies.

Electives in third or fourth year must include 1.0 3000 or 4000 level Music course

or equivalent from a department other than the Department of Music Performance Studies.

A maximum of 1.0 course from ~~Music 2171A/B/Y~~, Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, ~~and~~ Music 2801A/B **and the former Music 2171A/B/Y** may be counted toward the ~~program~~ **elective courses 'from the Faculty of Music'**. **Additional courses from this list taken beyond the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty'**.

Progression

If a student fails to meet admission requirements, permission to proceed in an Honours Music program may be granted by the Dean on the recommendation of the Department concerned; special conditions on future registration may be imposed.

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

The continued registration of a student ineligible to progress to the subsequent year of an Honours program will be restricted to courses required to complete the general Bachelor of Music or the three-year BA (Music) degree.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

BACHELOR OF MUSIC WITH HONOURS IN PERFORMANCE (PIANO)

Admission Requirements

For admission to this program, applicants must demonstrate at least a Level 10 Royal Conservatory of Music performance standard, or equivalent, in piano, as well as evidence of exceptional performing ability.

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

Common First Year

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

Admission Requirements after Year I Music

Completion of Common First Year with a weighted average of at least 70%, no mark less than 60% in Music courses, a passing grade in non-Music courses, and the recommendation of the department on the basis of a special audition.

Admission requirements after Year II Music

Completion of all courses specified for Years I and II of the program; a cumulative weighted average of at least 70% in Music courses; no mark less

than 60% in senior Music courses, a passing grade in each non-Music course; a mark of at least 70% in Music 2920 and permission of the Department on the basis of a special audition.

Module/Program Information

Second Year

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2921.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

2.0 courses or equivalent, at least 1.0 of which must be from a Faculty other than Music.

Third Year

Music 3921, Music 3930A/B/Y and 0.5 course from the Department of Music Performance Studies.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913.

2.0 courses from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

Fourth Year

Music 4921, Music 4930A/B/Y and 0.5 course from the Department of Music Performance Studies.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913.

2.0 courses or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

Notes: Music Electives must include Music 3958, Music 4959Y and Music 4976A/B/Y. Ensemble must include at least one of: Music 1906, Music 2906, Music 3906 or Music 4906.

Electives in third or fourth year must include 1.0 3000 or 4000 level Music course or equivalent from a department other than the Department of Music Performance Studies.

A maximum of 1.0 course from ~~Music 2171A/B/Y~~, Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music

2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, ~~and~~ Music 2801A/B ~~and the former Music 2171A/B/Y~~ may be counted toward the ~~program~~ elective courses 'from the Faculty of Music'. Additional courses from this list taken beyond the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty'.

Progression

If a student fails to meet admission requirements, permission to proceed in an Honours Music program may be granted by the Dean on the recommendation of the Department concerned; special conditions on future registration may be imposed.

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

The continued registration of a student ineligible to progress to the subsequent year of an Honours program will be restricted to courses required to complete the general Bachelor of Music or the three-year BA (Music) degree.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

BACHELOR OF MUSIC WITH HONOURS IN PERFORMANCE (VOICE)

Admission Requirements

For admission to this program, applicants must demonstrate at least a Level 10 Royal Conservatory of Music performance standard, or equivalent, in voice, as well as evidence of exceptional performing ability.

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview. Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

Common First Year

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.
Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.
0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.
0.5 course from any Faculty.
0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

Admission Requirements after Year I Music

Completion of Common First Year with a weighted average of at least 70%, no mark less than 60% in Music courses, a passing grade in non-Music courses, and the recommendation of the department on the basis of a special audition.

Admission requirements after Year II Music

Completion of all courses specified for Years I and II of the program; a cumulative weighted average of at least 70% in Music courses; no mark less than 60% in senior Music courses, a passing grade in each non-Music course; a

mark of at least 70% in Music 2920 and permission of the Department on the basis of a special audition.

Module/Program Information

Second Year

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2921.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

2.0 courses, at least 1.0 of which must be from a Faculty other than Music.

Third Year

Music 3921, Music 3930A/B/Y and 0.5 course from the Department of Music Performance Studies.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913.

2.0 courses or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

Fourth Year

Music 4921, Music 4930A/B/Y and 0.5 course from the Department of Music Performance Studies, Music 4945.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913.

1.0 course or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

Notes: Electives must include Music 2942A/B/Y and Music 3942A/B/Y. Electives must also include Music 2970 or a suitable alternative approved by the Chair of Music Performance Studies.

Electives in third or fourth year must include 1.0 3000 or 4000 level Music course or equivalent from a department other than the Department of Music Performance Studies.

A maximum of 1.0 course from ~~Music 2171A/B/Y~~, Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, ~~and~~ Music 2801A/B **and the former Music 2171A/B/Y** may be counted toward the ~~program~~ **elective courses**

'from the Faculty of Music'. Additional courses from this list taken beyond the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty'.

Progression

If a student fails to meet admission requirements, permission to proceed in an Honours Music program may be granted by the Dean on the recommendation of the Department concerned; special conditions on future registration may be imposed.

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

The continued registration of a student ineligible to progress to the subsequent year of an Honours program will be restricted to courses required to complete the general Bachelor of Music or the three-year BA (Music) degree.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

BACHELOR OF MUSIC (HONOURS)/HBA

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the Don Wright Faculty of Music.

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a Bachelor of Music (Honours) and a BA in Honours Business Administration (HBA). In Years 1 and 2, students are registered in the Bachelor of Music (Honours) in the Don Wright Faculty of Music and follow the normal curriculum for this degree. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5.

Admission Requirements

Students must meet normal admission requirements for both programs. Normally, students apply to the HBA program during their second year in the Bachelor of Music (Honours). Students applying to the Ivey Business School's Advanced Entry Opportunity (AEO) are also eligible to be considered for the combined program. Admission is competitive and limited.

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years, students must complete all requirements for Years 1 and 2 of the Bachelor of Music (Honours), including Business Administration 2257. In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They must also gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process.

Program Requirements

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

Module/Program Information

Year 1

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

3.5 courses: Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

A weighted average of at least 70% and no mark less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in the non-Music course.

Year 2

Ensemble: One or more of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

3.0 courses: Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

1.0 course from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course: Business Administration 2257.

Year 3 – HBA1

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

All students will take: Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

Years 4 and 5 (5.0 Music courses and 6.0 HBA2 credits).

Music (5.0 Music courses must be taken over Years 4 or 5).

From Year 3 of the BMus (Honours) program:

0.5 course: Music 3924Y and Ensemble* (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913) or 0.5 music elective.

1.5 courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 3924Y and Music 4924Y.

From Year 4 of the BMus (Honours) Program:

0.5 course: Music 4924Y and Ensemble* (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911,

Music 4912, Music 4913), or 0.5 music elective.

1.0 course at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

1.5 courses from the Faculty of Music.

Note: In the Bachelor of Music (Honours) program, no more than 8.0 courses **taken** may be numbered 1000 to 1999. A maximum of 1.0 course from ~~Music 2171A/B/Y~~, Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, ~~and~~ Music 2801A/B **and the former Music 2171A/B/Y** may be counted toward the ~~program~~ **elective courses 'from the Faculty of Music'. Additional courses from this list taken beyond the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty'.**

HBA2

Years 4 and 5 (HBA requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5 – except Business 4569 must be taken in Year 4).

2.5 courses:

- International Perspective Requirement: Business Administration 4505A/B (0.5 course).
- Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement: At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.
- Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B (0.5 course).
- Applied Project Requirement: Business Administration 4569 (1.0 course).

3.5 additional business electives.

Progression

Students in the combined program must meet the normal progression standards for both the Bachelor of Music (Honours) and HBA programs. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000-level HBA2 courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 70% with no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

Failure to Meet Progression Standards

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Bachelor of Music (Honours) program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a concurrent degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or concurrent programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

Dean's Honour List

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In the Don Wright Faculty of Music, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during Years 1, 2, 4 and 5, based on achieving an average of 80% or higher, with no failed courses, during that academic year.

Graduation

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a Bachelor of Music (Honours) and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

Graduation with Distinction

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

International Exchange Programs

Students in the combined HBA/Music degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Don Wright Faculty of Music.

Fees

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs. Contact the Office of the Registrar for details.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:

**WESTERN/FANSHAWE COLLABORATIVE DEGREE/DIPLOMA IN MUSIC
RECORDING ARTS (MRA)**

The MRA program is a five-year, integrated program. Successful graduates of the program will receive a Bachelor of Music degree from The University of Western Ontario and a two-year Ontario College Diploma in Music Industry Arts (MIA) from Fanshawe College.

Admission Requirements

Applicants must meet the admission requirements for the Bachelor of Music (BMus) program, which include an audition and an interview.

Up to ten students will be admitted to the collaborative Music Recording Arts (MRA) program each year. Students will apply for admission at the end of the second year of the general BMus program. Students will be evaluated for admission based on their academic standing by a joint committee from the two institutions. Attainment of minimum admission requirements does not guarantee admission to the MRA program. Entry to the collaborative program is competitive. The joint admissions committee will review requests for Advanced Standing on a case-by-case basis.

Those students not offered a place in the MRA collaborative program may continue in the general BMus program, provided they meet academic progression requirements, or may apply to the Fanshawe College diploma program in Music Industry Arts.

Program Description

Year 1: 5.0 courses + Ensemble, Western

Year 2: 5.0 courses + Ensemble, Western

Year 3: MIA – Level 1, Fanshawe
MIA - Level 2, Fanshawe
1.5 courses, Western

Year 4: 5.5 courses, Western

Year 5: MIA – Level 3, Fanshawe
MIA – Level 4, Fanshawe
1.0 course, Western

BACHELOR OF MUSIC

First Year

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

Second Year

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

Ensemble: One or more of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

1.0 course from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

Third Year

1.5 courses from any Faculty.

Fourth Year

2.5 courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

1.5 courses from the Faculty of Music.

1.5 courses from a Faculty other than Music.

Fifth Year

1.0 course from any Faculty.

Note: In the Bachelor of Music program, no more than 8.0 courses **taken** may be numbered 1000-1999. A maximum of 1.0 course from ~~Music 2171A/B/Y~~, Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, ~~and~~ Music 2801A/B **and the former Music 2171A/B/Y** may be counted toward the ~~program~~ **elective courses 'from the Faculty of Music'**. **Additional courses from this list taken beyond the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty'.**

Progression Requirements

Beginning in Year 3, students must maintain an overall weighted average of 70% with no more than 1.0 unsatisfactory course attempts in any given academic year.

Withdrawal

If, after Year 3, students wish to continue only in the general BMus program, they will be permitted to progress into the fourth year of the program provided they have met the progression requirements.

If, after Year 4, students wish to withdraw from either the Fanshawe or Western portions of the degree/diploma, they should consult their respective institution to determine which credits may be applied in a transfer to another program within one of the participating institutions.

DEPARTMENT OF MUSIC RESEARCH AND COMPOSITION

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

MUSIC 3730A/B POPULAR MUSIC: GENRE STUDIES

Course Description

Detailed study of one or more genres in popular music. ~~Emphasis~~ focusing on repertory, style, **music analysis**, and/or ~~historical context~~ **cultural history**.

Prerequisite(s): **Music 1651A/B and** Music 1730A/B.

Extra Information: 3 hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

FACULTY OF SCIENCE

DEPARTMENT OF EARTH SCIENCES

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

EARTH SCIENCES 3321A/B

~~PHYSICS OF THE EARTH I~~ **EARTH'S INTERIOR**

Course Description

An introduction to physics of the Earth's interior. Major topics are: Earth structure from seismic observations, heat flow, the physics of minerals under high temperatures and pressures, equations of state, seismological, thermal and compositional models.

Prerequisite(s): Earth Sciences 2220A/B ~~or the former Earth Sciences 2221A/B.~~

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours, 2 tutorial hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

FACULTY OF SOCIAL SCIENCE

DEPARTMENT OF GEOGRAPHY AND ENVIRONMENT

Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be withdrawn:

GEOGRAPHY 3000Y FIELD METHODS AND PRACTICES

Course Description

Departmental field trips to develop student skills in field-based observation, data collection and recording, and analysis and interpretation of human and physical landscapes.

Prerequisite(s): 3rd year status in any module in the Department of Geography and Environment except the Minor; limited enrolment. Priority given to Specialization and Honours Specialization students.

Extra Information: Sessions and dates by arrangements. Students should be prepared to meet the necessary travel and living expenses.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be withdrawn:

GEOGRAPHY 3001F/G COMMUNITY-BASED RESEARCH IN INDIGENOUS STUDIES

Course Description

This is an advanced community-based experiential course that combines in-class discussions with community-based research. Students will train in methodologies and ethics of working with First Nations communities. Areas of research may include but not limited to ecological restoration, land claims, self-government, education, health and wellness and urban issues.

Antirequisite(s): Earth Sciences 3023F/G, Indigenous Studies 4023F/G.

Prerequisite(s): Permission of the Department and 3rd or 4th year status in any Specialization or Honours Specialization module in the Department of Geography and Environment.

Extra Information: 2 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be withdrawn:

**GEOGRAPHY 3002A/B
COMMUNITY-BASED PRAXIS**

Course Description

This field course provides students with practical experience working in a local First Nations community on a collaborative project. Centering Indigenous ways of knowing, a major focus is on understanding intersecting cultural, political, ecological, social, and economic factors that shape community life. Topics include Indigenous governance, treaties, and political ecologies.

Antirequisite(s): Indigenous Studies 4024A/B.

Prerequisite(s): Any course in Arts and Humanities or Social Science and registration in third or fourth year.

Extra Information: Bi-weekly 3-hour lecture, bi-weekly 3-hour outdoor tutorial.
Cross-listed with Indigenous Studies 4024A/B.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**GEOGRAPHY 4001Y
FIELD METHODS AND PRACTICES**

Course Description

This course offers an immersive capstone field experience that gives students the opportunity to demonstrate application of their cumulative knowledge and skills in the field (a proxy for the real world), while simultaneously strengthening that knowledge base and skillset.

Antirequisite(s): The former Geography 3000Y.

Prerequisite(s): 3rd or 4th year status in any module in the Department of Geography and Environment except the Minor; limited enrolment. Priority given to Specialization and Honours Specialization students.

Extra Information: Sessions and dates by arrangements. Students should be prepared to meet the necessary travel and living expenses.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**GEOGRAPHY 4002F/G
A FIELD COURSE IN LAND HEALING AND RESPONSIBILITY**

(Short Title: Land Healing & Responsibility)

Course Description

This is an advanced community-based experiential course that combines in-class discussions with community-based research. Students will train in methodologies and ethics of working with First Nations communities. Areas of research may include but are not limited to ecological restoration, land claims, self-government, education, health and wellness and urban issues.

Antirequisite(s): Earth Sciences 3023F/G, Indigenous Studies 4023F/G, the former Geography 3001F/G.

Prerequisite(s): Permission of the Department and 3rd or 4th year status in any Specialization or Honours Specialization module in the Department of Geography and Environment.

Extra Information: 2 lecture hours. Cross-listed with Earth Sciences 3023F/G and Indigenous Studies 4023F/G.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**GEOGRAPHY 4003A/B
COMMUNITY-BASED PRAXIS**

Course Description

This field course provides students with practical experience working in a local First Nations community on a collaborative project. Centering Indigenous ways of knowing, a major focus is on understanding intersecting cultural, political, ecological, social, and economic factors that shape community life. Topics include Indigenous governance, treaties, and political ecologies.

Antirequisite(s): Indigenous Studies 4024A/B, the former Geography 3002A/B.

Prerequisite(s): Any course in Arts and Humanities or Social Science and registration in third or fourth year.

Extra Information: Bi-weekly 3-hour lecture, bi-weekly 3-hour outdoor tutorial.
Cross-listed with Indigenous Studies 4024A/B.
Course Weight: 0.50

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SCIENCE – BA

Admission Requirements

Completion of first-year requirements with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 70% and no mark below 60% in 3.0 principal courses, including 1.0 course* from Geography 1100, Geography 1200A/B, Geography 1300A/B, Geography 1400F/G, Geography 1500F/G, Environmental Science 1021F/G, plus 2.0 additional courses numbered 1000-1999.

* If upper-year students have not completed 1.0 courses listed above, they may select one or two courses from: Geography 2131A/B, Geography 2132A/B, Geography 2133A/B, Geography 2152F/G, and/or Geography 2153A/B in making up the 1.0 admission requirement, as long as they were completed with a grade of at least 60%. Senior qualifying entry course(s) cannot be counted for subsequent program credit.

Module

10.0 courses:

0.5 course: Geography 2210A/B* (normally taken in Year 2).

1.0 course: Geography 2220A/B, Geography 2230A/B.

1.0 course from: Geography 2310A/B, Geography 2320A/B, Geography 2330A/B, Geography 2411F/G, Geography 2412F/G, Geography 2420A/B, Geography 2430A/B, Geography 2460F/G, Geography 3250A/B.

2.0 courses normally taken in Year 3: Geography 3210A/B, Geography 3211A/B, Geography 3222A/B, Geography 3231A/B.

1.5 courses from: Computer Science 2034A/B, Computer Science 2120A/B, Geography 3224A/B, Geography 3225A/B, Geography 3226A/B, the former Geography 3223A/B, the former Geography 3421A/B.

0.5 course: Geography 4000A/B.

3.5 additional courses in Geography at the 3000 level or above, with ~~Geography 3000Y~~ **Geography 4001Y** or ~~Geography 3001F/G~~ **Geography 4002F/G** strongly recommended. (Students wishing to pursue graduate studies are encouraged to take Geography 4900E or Geography 4901E.)

*In cases where an antirequisite statistics course has been taken instead, the module will be 9.5 courses.

This module may NOT be combined with other modules offered by the Department of Geography and Environment.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

**HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SCIENCE –
BSc**

Admission Requirements

Completion of first year requirements with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 70% and no mark less than 60% in the 3.0 principal courses.

Principal Courses:

1.0 course* from Geography 1100, Geography 1200A/B, Geography 1300A/B, Geography 1400F/G, Geography 1500F/G, or Environmental Science 1021F/G, (with Geography 1300A/B recommended). 2.0 courses numbered 1000-1999 from the Faculty of Science (which may include Environmental Science 1021F/G if not used above) but **may not include** Astronomy 1011A/B, Astronomy 1021, Biology 1225, Biology 1229A/B, Biology 1290B, Chemistry 1027A/B, Computer Science 1032A/B, Computer Science 1033A/B, Earth Sciences 1086F/GA/B, Earth Sciences 1089F/G, Mathematics 0110A/B, Physics 1021, the former Earth Sciences 1088F/G.

Additional Requirements:

1.0 additional course numbered 1000-1999 from the Faculty of Science (which may include Environmental Science 1021F/G if not used above) but **may not include** Astronomy 1011A/B, Astronomy 1021, Biology 1225, Biology 1229A/B, Biology 1290B, Chemistry 1027A/B, Computer Science 1032A/B, Computer Science 1033A/B, Earth Sciences 1086F/GA/B, Earth Sciences 1089F/G, Mathematics 0110A/B, Physics 1021, the former Earth Sciences 1088F/G.

1.0 course numbered 1000-1999.

*If upper-year students have not completed 1.0 courses listed above, they may select one or two courses from: Geography 2131A/B, Geography 2132A/B, Geography 2133A/B, Geography 2152F/G, and/or Geography 2153A/B in making up the 1.0 admission requirement, as long as they were completed with a grade of at least 60%. Senior qualifying entry course(s) cannot be counted for subsequent program credit.

Module

10.0 courses:

0.5 course: Geography 2210A/B* (normally taken in Year 2).

1.0 course: Geography 2220A/B, Geography 2230A/B.

1.0 course from: Geography 2310A/B, Geography 2320A/B, Geography 2330A/B, Geography 2411F/G, Geography 2412F/G, Geography 2420A/B, Geography 2430A/B, Geography 2460F/G, Geography 3250A/B.

2.0 courses normally taken in Year 3: Geography 3210A/B, Geography 3211A/B, Geography 3222A/B, Geography 3231A/B.

1.5 courses from: Computer Science 2034A/B, Computer Science 2120A/B, Earth Sciences 3323A/B, Earth Sciences 3350Y, Geography 3224A/B, Geography 3225A/B, Geography 3226A/B, the former Geography 3223A/B, the former Geography 3421A/B.

0.5 course: Geography 4000A/B.

3.5 additional courses in Geography at the 3000 level or above, with ~~Geography 3000Y~~ **Geography 4001Y** or ~~Geography 3001F/G~~ **Geography 4002F/G** strongly recommended. (Students wishing to pursue graduate studies are encouraged to take Geography 4901E).

*In cases where an antirequisite statistics course has been taken instead, the module will be 9.5 courses.

Notes:

1. To qualify for the BSc degree 11.0 Science and/or Science-equivalent courses are required.
2. The following Geography courses have "Science-equivalent" status and count towards the 11.0 Faculty of Science course requirement for this module:
Geography 2210A/B, Geography 2220A/B, Geography 2230A/B, Geography 2310A/B, Geography 2320A/B, Geography 2330A/B, Geography 3210A/B, Geography 3211A/B, Geography 3222A/B, Geography 3224A/B, Geography 3226A/B, Geography 3231A/B, Geography 3311A/B, Geography 3334A/B, Geography 3350A/B, Geography 3352A/B, Geography 3353A/B, Geography 3354A/B, Geography 4901E, the former Geography 3223A/B.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN GEOGRAPHY AND ENVIRONMENT – BA

Admission Requirements

Completion of first-year requirements with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 70% and no mark below 60% in 3.0 principal courses, including 1.0 course* from Geography 1100, Geography 1200A/B, Geography 1300A/B, Geography 1400F/G, Geography 1500F/G, Environmental Science 1021F/G, plus 2.0 additional courses numbered 1000-1999.

*If upper-year students have not completed 1.0 courses listed above, they may select one or two courses from: Geography 2131A/B, Geography 2132A/B, Geography 2133A/B, Geography 2152F/G, and/or Geography 2153A/B in making up the 1.0 admission requirement, as long as they were completed with a grade of at least 60%. Senior qualifying entry course(s) cannot be counted for subsequent program credit.

Module

9.0 courses:

0.5 course: Geography 2210A/B* (normally taken in Year 2).

1.0 course: Geography 2220A/B, Geography 3250A/B.

1.0 course from: Geography 2411F/G, Geography 2412F/G, Geography 2420A/B, Geography 2430A/B, Geography 2460F/G.

1.0 course from: Geography 2310A/B, Geography 2320A/B, Geography 2330A/B.

1.0 course: Geography 3210A/B, Geography 4000A/B.

0.5 course from: Geography courses numbered 2000 to 2099.

4.0 courses in Geography at the 2200 level or above, at least 2.0 of which must be at 3000 level or above, with ~~Geography 3000Y~~ **Geography 4001Y** or ~~Geography 3001F/G~~ **Geography 4002F/G** strongly recommended. (Students wishing to pursue Graduate Studies are encouraged to take Geography 4900E or Geography 4901E.) * In cases where an antirequisite statistics course has been taken instead, then an additional 0.5 course numbered 2200 or above in Geography must be taken to make up the 9.0 courses required for the module.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN GEOGRAPHY AND ENVIRONMENT – BSc

Admission Requirements

Completion of first year requirements with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 70% and no mark less than 60% in the 3.0 principal courses.

Principal Courses:

1.0 course* from Geography 1100, Geography 1200A/B, Geography 1300A/B, Geography 1400F/G, Geography 1500F/G, or Environmental Science 1021F/G, (with Geography 1300A/B recommended). 2.0 courses numbered 1000-1999 from the Faculty of Science (which may include Environmental Science 1021F/G if not used above) but **may not include** Astronomy 1011A/B, Astronomy 1021, Biology 1225, Biology 1229A/B, Biology 1290B, Chemistry 1027A/B, Computer Science 1032A/B, Computer Science 1033A/B, Earth Sciences 1086F/GA/B, Earth Sciences 1089F/G, Mathematics 0110A/B, Physics 1021, the former Earth Sciences 1088F/G.

Additional Requirements:

1.0 additional course numbered 1000-1999 from the Faculty of Science (which may include Environmental Science 1021F/G if not used above) but **may not include** Astronomy 1011A/B, Astronomy 1021, Biology 1225, Biology 1229A/B, Biology 1290B, Chemistry 1027A/B, Computer Science 1032A/B, Computer Science 1033A/B, Earth Sciences 1086F/GA/B, Earth Sciences 1089F/G, Mathematics 0110A/B, Physics 1021, the former Earth Sciences 1088F/G.
1.0 course numbered 1000-1999

*If upper-year students have not completed 1.0 courses listed above, they may select one or two courses from: Geography 2131A/B, Geography 2132A/B, Geography 2133A/B, Geography 2152F/G, and/or Geography 2153A/B in making up the 1.0 admission requirement, as long as they were completed with a grade of at least 60%. Senior qualifying entry course(s) cannot be counted for subsequent program credit.

Module

10.0 courses:

1.0 course: Geography 2210A/B* (normally taken in Year 2), Geography 3210A/B.

1.5 courses from: Geography 2220A/B, Geography 2230A/B, Geography 3222A/B.

1.0 course from: Geography 2411F/G, Geography 2412F/G, Geography 2420A/B, Geography 2430A/B, Geography 2460F/G.

1.0 course from: Geography 2310A/B, Geography 2320A/B, Geography 2330A/B.

0.5 course from: Geography courses numbered 3200 to 3299.

0.5 course: Geography 4000A/B.

0.5 course from: Geography courses numbered 2000 to 2099.

4.0 courses in Geography at the 2200 level or above, at least 3.0 of which must be at 3000 level or above, with ~~Geography 3000Y~~ **Geography 4001Y** or ~~Geography 3001F/G~~ **Geography 4002F/G** strongly recommended, and where 2.0 courses must be taken from the following list of Science-equivalent courses. (Students wishing to pursue Graduate Studies are encouraged to take Geography 4901E). * If an antirequisite statistics course has been taken instead, then the module will be 9.5 courses.

Notes:

1. To qualify for the BSc degree 11.0 Science and/or Science-equivalent courses are required.

2. When taken within this module, the following Geography courses count towards meeting the requirement of 11.0 Science courses in a 4-Year BSc: Geography 2210A/B, Geography 2220A/B, Geography 2230A/B, Geography 2310A/B, Geography 2320A/B, Geography 2330A/B, Geography 3210A/B, Geography 3211A/B, Geography 3222A/B, Geography 3224A/B, Geography 3226A/B, Geography 3231A/B, Geography 3311A/B, Geography 3334A/B, Geography 3350A/B, Geography 3352A/B, Geography 3353A/B, Geography 3354A/B, Geography 4901E, the former Geography 3223A/B.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN GEOGRAPHY AND ENVIRONMENT/HBA

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the Department of Geography **and Environment** in the Faculty of Social Science.

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a BA in Honours Business Administration (HBA) and a BA Honours Specialization in Geography. In Years 1 and 2 students are registered in the Department of Geography **and Environment** and follow the normal curriculum for the Honours Specialization module. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5. Admission requirements for the combined program are outlined below.

Admission Requirements

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years students must complete a minimum of 10.0 courses including Business Administration 2257. In Year 1 they must complete the admission requirements as specified in the current Academic Calendar for entry into the Honours Specialization module offered by the Department of Geography **and Environment**.

In Year 2 students must enrol in the Honours Specialization in the Department of Geography **and Environment** and satisfy the minimum progression requirements for the second year of that Honours Specialization. Under certain conditions, students who enrol in a Major in Geography in Year 2 may be eligible for admission to the combined degree program, but they will have to transfer into an Honours Specialization module in the Department of Geography **and Environment** if they are accepted into the combined degree program. Such a transfer is possible only if they have received the marks needed to transfer into an Honours Specialization module. Students must be able to complete all of the requirements of the combined degree program for that module, including breadth requirements and completion of essays.

In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They also must gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process. In addition, students must normally attain a minimum weighted average of 78% in the first year of the HBA.

Students apply for the combined degree program during the HBA 1 year, typically their third year of University. Applications to the combined program must be made in writing to the Undergraduate Program Advisor of the Department of

Geography **and Environment** and to the HBA Program Office by the deadlines published by the Richard Ivey School of Business. Entrance to the program may be limited.

Module/Program Information

Year 1

Completion of 5.0 first-year courses with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 75% and no mark below 60% in the 3.0 principal courses.

Principal Courses:

1.0 course* from Geography 1100, Geography 1200A/B, Geography 1300A/B, Geography 1400F/G, Geography 1500F/G, Environmental Science 1021F/G, (with Geography 1400F/G recommended).
2.0 courses numbered 1000-1999.

* If upper-year students have not completed 1.0 courses listed above, they may select one or two courses from: Geography 2131A/B, Geography 2132A/B, Geography 2133A/B, Geography 2152F/G, and/or Geography 2153A/B in making up the 1.0 admission requirement, as long as they were completed with a grade of at least 60%. Senior qualifying entry course(s) cannot be counted for subsequent program credit.

Students are required in Year 1 to take at least 1.0 course from either Category B or C. However, it is strongly recommended that students include in their Year 1 course selection 1.0 course from Category B and 1.0 from Category C in order to meet the breadth requirements of their degree.

Year 2

5.0 courses:

0.5 course: Geography 2210A/B* (must be taken in Year 2)

2.5 courses from the following 3.0 geography courses:

0.5 course: Geography 2220A/B.

1.0 course from: Geography 2411F/G, Geography 2420A/B, Geography 2430A/B, Geography 2460F/G.

1.0 course from: Geography 2310A/B, Geography 2320A/B, Geography 2330A/B.

0.5 course from: Geography courses numbered 2000 to 2099.

1.0 course: Business Administration 2257.

1.0 course: Option (must be a course from Category B or C if not completed in Year 1).

* In cases where an antirequisite statistics course has been taken instead, then an additional 0.5 course numbered 2200 or above in Geography must be taken to make up the 9.0 courses required for the module.

Year 3 (HBA1)

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

All students will take: Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K, Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

Years 4 and 5 (HBA and Geography)

HBA: Requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5 (except that Business Administration 4569 must be taken in Year 4)

5.0 courses:

0.5 course: (International Perspective Requirement) Business Administration 4505A/B.

0.5 course: (Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement) At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.

0.5 course: Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B.

1.0 course: (Applied Project Requirement) Business Administration 4569.

2.5 additional business elective courses. (These must be taken at the Business School and cannot be substituted with other Western courses.)

Years 4 and 5 (Geography)

6.0 courses:

The remaining **0.5 course** from the following 3.0 geography courses:

0.5 course: Geography 2220A/B.

1.0 course from: Geography 2411F/G, Geography 2420A/B, Geography 2430A/B, Geography 2460F/G.

1.0 course from: Geography 2310A/B, Geography 2320A/B, Geography 2330A/B.

0.5 course from: Geography courses numbered 2000 to 2099.

1.5 courses: Geography 3210A/B, Geography 3250A/B, Geography 4000A/B.

4.0 courses: Geography at the 2200 level or above, at least 2.0 of which must be at the 3000 level or above, with ~~Geography 3000Y~~ **Geography 4001Y** or ~~Geography 3001F/G~~ **Geography 4002F/G** strongly recommended. (Students wishing to pursue Graduate Studies are encouraged to take Geography 4900E or Geography 4901E.)

Note: To complete the program in five years, students must take a 1.0 course overload in Year 4 or Year 5, or a 0.5 overload in both Years 4 and 5.

Program Requirements

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

Progression

Students in the combined program must meet the progression standards of each Faculty or School. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000- level HBA courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 75% in their Honours Specialization module and meet all other progression requirements of the Honours Specialization module in which they are enrolled.

Failure to Meet Progression Standards

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Geography program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a combined degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or combined programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

Dean's Honour List

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In Social Science, students will be considered for the Dean's Honour List in the usual way in Years 1 and 2, and at the end of Year 5 by considering all Social Science courses that have been taken in Years 4 and 5. Students who take at least 2.0 Social Science courses in Year 4 will be considered for the Dean's Honour List in that year on the basis of those courses.

Graduation

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a BA with Honours Specialization in Geography and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

Graduation with Distinction

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

International Exchange Programs

Students in the combined HBA/Geography degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Geography Undergraduate Program Advisor.

Fees

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs. Contact the Office of the Registrar for details.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN URBAN DEVELOPMENT – BA

Admission Requirements

Completion of 5.0 first-year courses with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 70% and no mark less than 60% in the 3.0 principal courses.

Principal Courses:

1.0 course* from Geography 1100, Geography 1200A/B, Geography 1300A/B, Geography 1400F/G, Geography 1500F/G, Environmental Science 1021F/G, (with Geography 1400F/G recommended).
1.0 course from Economics 1021A/B and Economics 1022A/B.
1.0 course numbered 1000-1999.

*If upper-year students have not completed 1.0 courses listed above, they may select one or two courses from: Geography 2131A/B, Geography 2132A/B, Geography 2133A/B, Geography 2152F/G, Geography 2153A/B, Geography 2160A/B and/or Geography 2162A/B in making up the 1.0 admission requirement, as long as they were completed with a grade of at least 60%. Senior qualifying entry course(s) cannot be counted for subsequent program credit.

Students are strongly recommended to include in their first year course selection 1.0 course from Category B and 1.0 from Category C in order to meet the breadth requirements of their degree.

Module

13.0 courses:

0.5 course: Geography 2210A/B (normally taken in Year 2).

4.0 courses: Geography 2220A/B, Geography 2420A/B, Geography 2460F/G, Geography 3225A/B, Geography 3461F/G, Geography 3462F/G, Geography 3464F/G, Geography 4000A/B.

1.5 courses from: Geography 2230A/B, ~~Geography 3000Y or Geography 3001F/G~~, Geography 3210A/B, Geography 3211A/B, Geography 3222A/B, Geography 3226A/B, Geography 3250A/B, **Geography 4001Y or Geography 4002F/G, the former Geography 3000Y, the former Geography 3001F/G**, the former Geography 3223A/B, the former Geography 3421A/B, with ~~Geography 3000Y~~ **Geography 4001Y** or ~~Geography 3001F/G~~ **Geography 4002F/G** strongly recommended.

2.0 courses from: Geography 2160A/B, Geography 2162A/B, Geography 2310A/B, Geography 2320A/B, Geography 2330A/B, Geography 2411F/G or Indigenous Studies 2601F/G, Geography 2412F/G, Geography 2430A/B,

Geography 3311A/B, Geography 3354A/B, Geography 3414A/B, Geography 3416F/G, Geography 3463F/G, Geography 3465F/G, Geography 4460F/G, Geography 4900E.

1.0 course: Business Administration 2257.

0.5 course: Economics 2157F/G.

0.5 course: Political Science 2546F/G.

1.0 course from: Economics 2129A/B, Economics 2150A/B, MOS 2310A/B, Political Science 2211E, Political Science 2547F/G, Political Science 3363F/G, Sociology 2279A/B, Sociology 2280A/B.

1.0 course: MOS 2275A/B, MOS 3370A/B.

1.0 additional course* from: Actuarial Science 2053, Actuarial Science 2553A/B, Anthropology 2201F/G, Anthropology 2203F/G, Anthropology 2260F/G, Art History 2670F/G, Classical Studies 2500A/B, Comparative Literature and Culture 2129A/B, Computer Science 1032A/B, Computer Science 2034A/B, Digital Humanities 2144A/B, Digital Humanities 2220A/B, Earth Sciences 2241A/B, Economics 2129A/B, Economics 2150A/B, Economics 2151A/B, Economics 2172A/B, Economics 2176A/B, Economics 2184A/B, Financial Modelling 2555A/B, Law 2101, Law 5322A/D, Law 5680A/C/D, Law 5682A/D, MOS 2310A/B, MOS 4471A/B, Philosophy 2035F/G, Philosophy 2355F/G, Political Science 2211E, Political Science 2547F/G, Political Science 3363F/G, Political Science 3364F/G, Sociology 2236A/B, Sociology 2279A/B, Sociology 2280A/B, Sociology 2281A/B, Writing 2101F/G, Writing 2111F/G.

* If any of these courses have been taken in earlier sections, they do not count twice toward completion of the module.

This module may NOT be combined with other modules.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN URBAN DEVELOPMENT/HBA

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the Department of Geography **and Environment** in the Faculty of Social Science.

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a BA in Honours Business Administration (HBA) and a BA with Honours Specialization in Urban Development (Geography). In Years 1 and 2 students are registered in the Department of Geography **and Environment** and follow the normal curriculum for the Urban Development module. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5. Admission requirements for the combined program are outlined below.

Admission Requirements

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years students must complete a minimum of 10.0 courses including Business Administration 2257. In Year 1 they must complete the admission requirements as specified in the current Academic Calendar for entry into the Honours Specialization module offered by the Department of Geography **and Environment**.

In Year 2 students must enrol in the Honours Specialization in Urban Development in the Department of Geography **and Environment** and satisfy the minimum progression requirements for the second year of that Honours Specialization. Under certain conditions, students who in Year 2 enrol in a Major in Geography may be eligible for admission to the combined degree program, but they will have to transfer into the Honours Specialization in Urban Development module in the Department of Geography **and Environment** if they are accepted into the combined degree program. Such a transfer is only possible if they have received the marks needed to transfer into the Honours Specialization module and are able to complete all the requirements of the combined degree program for the module.

In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They must also gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process. In addition, students must normally attain a minimum weighted average of 78% in the first year of the HBA.

Students apply for the combined degree program during the HBA 1 year, typically their third year of University. Applications to the combined program must be made in writing to the Undergraduate Program Advisor of the Department of

Geography **and Environment** and to the HBA Program Office by the deadlines published by the Richard Ivey School of Business. Entrance to the program may be limited.

Module/Program Information

Year 1

Completion of 5.0 first-year courses with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 75% and no mark below 60% in the 3.0 principal courses.

Principal Courses:

1.0 course* from Geography 1100, Geography 1200A/B, Geography 1300A/B, Geography 1400F/G, Geography 1500F/G, Environmental Science 1021F/G, (with Geography 1400F/G recommended).

1.0 course from Economics 1021A/B and Economics 1022A/B.

1.0 course numbered 1000-1999.

* If upper-year students have not completed 1.0 courses listed above, they may select one or two courses from: Geography 2131A/B, Geography 2132A/B, Geography 2133A/B, Geography 2152F/G, Geography 2153A/B, Geography 2160A/B, and/or Geography 2162A/B in making up the 1.0 admission requirement, as long as they were completed with a grade of at least 60%. Senior qualifying entry course(s) cannot be counted for subsequent program credit.

Students are required in Year 1 to take at least 1.0 course from either Category B or C. However, it is strongly recommended that students include in their Year 1 course selection 1.0 course from Category B and 1.0 from Category C in order to meet the breadth requirements of their degree.

Recommended Category B courses include but are not limited to: Classical Studies 1000, World Literatures and Cultures 1030, Digital Humanities 1011A/B, Art History 1641A/B, Art History 1642A/B.

Recommended Category C courses include but are not limited to: Actuarial Science 1021A/B; **Mathematics 0110A/B, Mathematics 1600A/B; Calculus 1000A/B, Calculus 1301A/B or Calculus 1501A/B, the former Calculus 1100A/B; Computer Science 1025A/B, Computer Science 1026A/B, Computer Science 1032A/B.

**If Economics 2150A/B or Economics 2151A/B are selected in the module, one of MVC4U, Mathematics 0110A/B, Calculus 1000A/B, Calculus 1500A/B, Mathematics 1225A/B is required for registration.

Year 2

5.0 courses:

1.0 course: Business Administration 2257.

2.0 courses: Geography 2210A/B*, Geography 2220A/B, Geography 2420A/B, Geography 2460F/G.

1.0 course from: Geography 2160A/B, Geography 2162A/B, Geography 2230A/B, Geography 2310A/B, Geography 2320A/B, Geography 2330A/B, Geography 2411F/G or Indigenous Studies 2601F/G, Geography 2430A/B.

1.0 course from: Anthropology 2201F/G; Comparative Literature and Culture 2129A/B, Digital Humanities 2220A/B; Economics 2150A/B, Economics 2151A/B, Economics 2157F/G, Economics 2184A/B; MOS 2275A/B**; Political Science 2211E, Political Science 2236E, Political Science 2246E; Sociology 2279A/B, Sociology 2280A/B; Writing 2101F/G.

1.0 additional course from Category B or C (if not already completed in Year 1).

* In cases where an antirequisite statistics course has been taken instead, an additional 0.5 course numbered 2200 or above in Geography must be taken to make up the courses required for the module.

** Business Administration 4450A/B is an antirequisite.

Year 3 (HBA1)

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

All students will take: Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K, Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

Years 4 and 5 (HBA and Geography)

HBA: Requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5 (except that Business Administration 4569 must be taken in Year 4)

5.0 courses:

0.5 course: (International Perspective Requirement) Business Administration 4505A/B.

0.5 course: (Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement) At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.

0.5 course: Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B.

1.0 course: (Applied Project Requirement) Business Administration 4569.

2.5 additional business elective courses. (These must be taken at the Business School and cannot be substituted with other Western courses.)

* Recommended electives include but are not limited to: Business Administration 4450A/B, Business Administration 4439A/B, Business Administration 4443A/B, Business Administration 4486A/B, Business Administration 4554A/B, Business Administration 4565A/B, Business Administration 4567A/B, the former Business Administration 4455Q/R/S/T.

Geography: Requirements can normally be taken over Year 4 or 5 (as long as prerequisites are met)

6.0 courses:

2.5 courses: Geography 3461F/G, Geography 3462F/G, Geography 3464F/G***, Geography 3465F/G, Geography 4000A/B.

1.0 course from: Geography 3210A/B, Geography 3211A/B, Geography 3222A/B, Geography 3225A/B, Geography 3226A/B, Geography 3250A/B, the former Geography 3223A/B, the former Geography 3421A/B.

2.5 courses from*: Art History 2670F/G, Digital Humanities 2220A/B, Economics 2150A/B, Economics 2151A/B, Economics 2157F/G, Economics 2184A/B, ~~Geography 3000Y or Geography 3001F/G~~, Geography 3210A/B, Geography 3211A/B, Geography 3222A/B, Geography 3225A/B, Geography 3226A/B, Geography 3250A/B, Geography 3354A/B, Geography 3414A/B, Geography 3416F/G, Geography 3443F/G, Geography 3463F/G, **Geography 4001Y or Geography 4002F/G**, Geography 4460F/G, Geography 4900E, MOS 2275A/B**, Political Science 2211E, Political Science 2236E, Political Science 2246E, Political Science 3363F/G, Political Science 3364F/G, Sociology 2279A/B, Sociology 2280A/B, Writing 2101F/G, **the former Geography 3000Y, the former Geography 3001F/G**, the former Geography 3223A/B, the former Geography 3421A/B.

* If any of these courses have been taken in earlier sections, they do not count twice toward completion of the module.

** Business Administration 4450A/B is an antirequisite.

*** Business Administration 4613A/B is an antirequisite.

Note: To complete the program in five years, students must take a 1.0 course overload in Year 4 or Year 5, or a 0.5 overload in both Years 4 and 5.

Note: Students wishing to pursue Graduate Studies are encouraged to take Geography 4900E.

Program Requirements

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

Progression

Students in the combined program must meet the progression standards of each Faculty or School. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000-level HBA courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 75% in their Honours Specialization in Urban Development module and meet all other progression requirements of the module.

Failure to Meet Progression Standards

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Geography program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a combined degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or combined programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

Dean's Honour List

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In Social Science, students will be considered for the Dean's Honour List in the

usual way in Years 1 and 2, and at the end of Year 5 by considering all Social Science courses that have been taken in Years 4 and 5. Students who take at least 2.0 Social Science courses in Year 4 will be considered for the Dean's Honour List in that year on the basis of those courses.

Graduation

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a BA with an Honours Specialization in Urban Development (Geography) and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

Graduation with Distinction

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

International Exchange Programs

Students in the combined HBA/Urban Development degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Geography Undergraduate Program Advisor.

Fees

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs. Contact the Office of the Registrar for details.

DEPARTMENT OF HISTORY

Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be withdrawn:

HISTORY 3402F/G

HOMER TO ST. AUGUSTINE: CLASSIC TEXTS AND DEBATES IN WESTERN CULTURE (I)

Course Description

Homer's Odyssey, Aristotle's Ethics, the Hebrew Bible, and St. Augustine's Confessions, which influenced both the ages in which they were composed and subsequent Western thought, depict distinctive and often conflicting ideals for the individual and society. The class examines these ideals and the larger debates they embody and reflect.

Prerequisite(s): Registration in third year or above, any module.

Extra Information: 2 seminar hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be withdrawn:

HISTORY 3404F/G

MONTESQUIEU TO MILL: CLASSIC TEXTS AND DEBATES IN WESTERN CULTURE (II)

Course Description

The class examines and compares the work of key Enlightenment thinkers, including Montesquieu, Voltaire, and Rousseau, as well as authors who responded to the Enlightenment and the French Revolution and interpreted contemporary changes taking place in Europe, including Edmund Burke, Friedrich Hegel, Alexis de Tocqueville, and John Stuart Mill.

Prerequisite(s): Registration in third year or above, any module.

Extra Information: 2 seminar hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be withdrawn:

HISTORY 3414F/G

THE VICTORIAN WORLDVIEW: NINETEENTH-CENTURY BRITAIN

Course Description

This seminar examines the worldviews of men and women in nineteenth-century Britain: economic, political, social, and scientific, taking into account both conservative and radical perspectives. It also explores the domestic ideology commonly associated with the period, and the challenges posed to the Victorian domestic ideal.

Antirequisite(s): History 3432F/G, History 4423E, History 4420F/G.

Prerequisite(s): Registration in third year or above, any module.

Extra Information: Two seminar hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

HISTORY 4402F/G

HOMER TO ST. AUGUSTINE: CLASSIC TEXTS AND DEBATES IN WESTERN CULTURE

(Short Title: Homer to St. Augustine)

Course Description

Homer's *Odyssey*, Aristotle's *Ethics*, the Hebrew Bible, and St. Augustine's *Confessions* influenced both the ages in which they were composed and subsequent Western thought. This course examines these texts, the distinctive and often conflicting ideals for the individual and society they depict, and the larger debates they embody and reflect.

Antirequisite(s): The former History 3402F/G.

Prerequisite(s): Registration in third year or above, any module.

Extra Information: 2 seminar hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

HISTORY 4404F/G

MONTESQUIEU TO VIRGINIA WOOLF: CLASSIC TEXTS AND DEBATES IN WESTERN CULTURE

(Short Title: Montesquieu to Virginia Woolf)

Course Description

The class examines the work of iconic Enlightenment thinkers, Montesquieu, Voltaire, and Rousseau, and later writers who interpreted and challenged Enlightenment claims, including Edmund Burke, Alexis de Tocqueville, and John Stuart Mill. We also read authors outside the traditional canon, including Mary Wollstonecraft, Frederick Douglass, and Virginia Woolf.

Antirequisite(s): The former History 3404F/G.

Prerequisite(s): Registration in third year or above, any module.

Extra Information: 2 seminar hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

HISTORY 4424F/G

THE VICTORIAN WORLDVIEW: NINETEENTH-CENTURY BRITAIN

(Short Title: The Victorian Worldview)

Course Description

This seminar examines the worldviews of men and women in nineteenth-century Britain: economic, political, social, and scientific, taking into account both conservative and radical perspectives. It also explores the domestic ideology commonly associated with the period, and the challenges posed to the Victorian domestic ideal.

Antirequisite(s): The former History 3414F/G, the former History 3432F/G, the former History 4420F/G, the former History 4423E.

Prerequisite(s): Registration in third year or above, any module.

Extra Information: 2 seminar hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

HISTORY 2705E

~~THE WESTERN TRADITION IN INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS THEORY AND PRACTICE~~ **RETHINKING IR: GLOBAL HISTORICAL PERSPECTIVES ON INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS**

(Short Title: Rethinking IR)

Course Description

The course examines historical international relations theory critically and in context, not only the "canon" of Western thinkers but also international voices often marginalized in IR theory. In doing so, the course considers the role of race, gender, imperialism, religion, and more in the development of IR theory.

Extra Information: 3 hours.

Course Weight: 1.00

INDIGENOUS STUDIES PROGRAM

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

INDIGENOUS STUDIES 2001A/B INDIGENOUS ALLYSHIP

Course Description

What is an ally and how does a non-Indigenous person become one? How do non-Indigenous people become allies without taking up Indigenous spaces? These questions are considered in this course exploring Indigenous advocacy and the role of non-Indigenous peoples.

Prerequisite(s): Any course in Social Science or Arts and Humanities and registration in second year or higher.

Extra Information: Weekly lectures uploaded to OWL Brightspace.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

INDIGENOUS STUDIES 4023F/G ~~COMMUNITY-BASED RESEARCH IN INDIGENOUS STUDIES~~ A FIELD COURSE IN LAND HEALING AND RESPONSIBILITY

(Short Title: Land Healing & Responsibility)

Course Description

This is an advanced community-based experiential course that combines in-class discussions with community-based research. Students will train in methodologies and ethics of working with Indigenous communities. Areas of research may include but not limited to ecological restoration, land claims, self-government, education, health and wellness and urban issues.

Antirequisite(s): Earth Sciences 3023F/G, **Geography 4002F/G, the former** Geography 3001F/G.

Prerequisite(s): Registration in third or fourth-year Indigenous Studies with a minimum 70% average.

Extra Information: 2 lecture hours. Cross-listed with **Earth Sciences 3023F/G** and Geography ~~3001F/G~~ **4002F/G**.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**INDIGENOUS STUDIES 4024A/B
COMMUNITY-BASED PRAXIS**

Course Description

This field course provides students with practical experience working in a local First Nations community on a collaborative project. Centering Indigenous ways of knowing, a major focus is on understanding intersecting cultural, political, ecological, social, and economic factors that shape community life. Topics include Indigenous governance, treaties, and political ecologies.

Antirequisite(s): **Geography 4003A/B, the former** Geography 3002A/B.

Prerequisite(s): Any course in Arts and Humanities or Social Science and registration in third or fourth year.

Extra Information: Bi-weekly 3-hour lecture, bi-weekly 3-hour outdoor tutorial.
Cross-listed with Geography ~~3002A/B~~ **4003A/B**.
Course Weight: 0.50

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN INDIGENOUS STUDIES

Admission Requirements

Completion of first year requirements. Students must have an average of at least 70% in 3.0 principal courses, including Indigenous Studies 1020E, plus 2.0 additional courses, with no mark in these principal courses below 60%.

Module

9.0 courses:

1.0 course from: Indigenous Studies 2000A/B, **Indigenous Studies 2001A/B**, Indigenous Studies 2218F/G.

1.5 courses from Indigenous Language, Arts and Culture: Indigenous Studies 2103F/G, Indigenous Studies 2120, Indigenous Studies 2216F/G (Anthropology 2216F/G), Indigenous Studies 2230F/G (Anthropology 2230F/G), Indigenous Studies 2233F/G (Anthropology 2233F/G), Indigenous Studies 2234F/G (Anthropology 2234F/G), Indigenous Studies 2253A/B (Anthropology 2253A/B), Indigenous Studies 2501F/G, Indigenous Studies 2676A/B (Studio Art 2676A/B), Indigenous Studies 2682F/G (Art History 2634F/G, GSWS 2291F/G), Indigenous Studies 3209F/G (Theatre Studies 3209F/G), Indigenous Studies 3676A/B (Studio Art 3676A/B), Indigenous Studies 3880F/G (English 3680F/G).

1.5 courses from Indigenous Environment, Health and Well-being: Astronomy 2020F/G, Indigenous Studies 2133A/B (Geography 2133A/B), Indigenous Studies 2203F/G (Anthropology 2203F/G), Indigenous Studies 2412F/G (Geography 2412F/G), Indigenous Studies 2601F/G (Geography 2411F/G), Indigenous Studies 3600F/G (Geography 3413F/G).

1.5 courses from Indigenous Governance, Policy and History: Indigenous Studies 2210F/G (History 2210F/G), Indigenous Studies 2807F/G (GSWS 2290F/G), Indigenous Studies 2919F/G, Indigenous Studies 3267F/G (History 3267F/G), Indigenous Studies 3722F/G (Political Science 3398F/G), Indigenous Studies 4024A/B (**Geography 4003A/B (the former** Geography 3002A/B)), Indigenous Studies 4818F/G (History 4818F/G), Sociology 2190F/G.

2.0 courses from Indigenous Methodologies – at least 1.0 at the 4000-level: Indigenous Studies 3140F/G, Indigenous Studies 3142F/G, Indigenous Studies 3306A/B, Indigenous Studies 4022E, Indigenous Studies 4023F/G (Earth Sciences 3023F/G, **Geography 4002F/G (the former** Geography 3001F/G)), Indigenous Studies 4806F/G (History 4806F/G), Indigenous Studies 4903F/G (Anthropology 4405F/G).

1.5 courses in Indigenous Studies (or cross-listed with Indigenous Studies) at the 2000-level or higher not taken from above.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

MAJOR IN INDIGENOUS STUDIES

Admission Requirements

Completion of first year requirements, including Indigenous Studies 1020E with a mark of at least 60%.

Module

6.0 courses:

1.0 course from: Indigenous Studies 2000A/B, **Indigenous Studies 2001A/B**, Indigenous Studies 2218F/G.

1.0 course from Indigenous Language, Arts and Culture: Indigenous Studies 2103F/G, Indigenous Studies 2120, Indigenous Studies 2216F/G (Anthropology 2216F/G), Indigenous Studies 2230F/G (Anthropology 2230F/G), Indigenous Studies 2233F/G (Anthropology 2233F/G), Indigenous Studies 2234F/G (Anthropology 2234F/G), Indigenous Studies 2253A/B (Anthropology 2253A/B), Indigenous Studies 2501F/G, Indigenous Studies 2676A/B (Studio Art 2676A/B), Indigenous Studies 2682F/G (Art History 2634F/G, GSWS 2291F/G), Indigenous Studies 3209F/G (Theatre Studies 3209F/G), Indigenous Studies 3676A/B (Studio Art 3676A/B), Indigenous Studies 3880F/G (English 3680F/G).

1.0 course from Indigenous Environment, Health and Well-being: Astronomy 2020F/G, Indigenous Studies 2133A/B (Geography 2133A/B), Indigenous Studies 2203F/G (Anthropology 2203F/G), Indigenous Studies 2412F/G (Geography 2412F/G), Indigenous Studies 2601F/G (Geography 2411F/G), Indigenous Studies 3600F/G (Geography 3413F/G).

1.0 course from Indigenous Governance, Policy and History: Indigenous Studies 2210F/G (History 2210F/G), Indigenous Studies 2807F/G (GSWS 2290F/G), Indigenous Studies 2919F/G, Indigenous Studies 3267F/G (History 3267F/G), Indigenous Studies 3722F/G (Political Science 3398F/G), Indigenous Studies 4024A/B (**Geography 4003A/B (the former** Geography 3002A/B)), Indigenous Studies 4818F/G (History 4818F/G), Sociology 2190F/G.

1.0 course from Indigenous Methodologies: Indigenous Studies 3140F/G, Indigenous Studies 3142F/G, Indigenous Studies 3306A/B, Indigenous Studies 4022E, Indigenous Studies 4023F/G (Earth Sciences 3023F/G, **Geography 4002F/G (the former** Geography 3001F/G)), Indigenous Studies 4806F/G (History 4806F/G), Indigenous Studies 4903F/G (Anthropology 4405F/G).

1.0 course in Indigenous Studies (or cross-listed with Indigenous Studies) at the 2000-level or higher not taken from above.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

MINOR IN INDIGENOUS STUDIES

Admission Requirements

Completion of first year requirements, including Indigenous Studies 1020E with a mark of at least 60%.

Module

4.0 courses:

0.5 course from: Indigenous Studies 2000A/B, **Indigenous Studies 2001A/B.**

0.5 course from Indigenous Language, Arts and Culture: Indigenous Studies 2103F/G, Indigenous Studies 2120, Indigenous Studies 2216F/G (Anthropology 2216F/G), Indigenous Studies 2230F/G (Anthropology 2230F/G), Indigenous Studies 2233F/G (Anthropology 2233F/G), Indigenous Studies 2234F/G (Anthropology 2234F/G), Indigenous Studies 2253A/B (Anthropology 2253A/B), Indigenous Studies 2501F/G, Indigenous Studies 2676A/B (Studio Art 2676A/B), Indigenous Studies 2682F/G (Art History 2634F/G, GSWS 2291F/G), Indigenous Studies 3209F/G (Theatre Studies 3209F/G), Indigenous Studies 3676A/B (Studio Art 3676A/B), Indigenous Studies 3880F/G (English 3680F/G).

0.5 course from Indigenous Environment, Health and Well-being: Astronomy 2020F/G, Indigenous Studies 2133A/B (Geography 2133A/B), Indigenous Studies 2203F/G (Anthropology 2203F/G), Indigenous Studies 2218F/G, Indigenous Studies 2412F/G (Geography 2412F/G), Indigenous Studies 2601F/G (Geography 2411F/G), Indigenous Studies 3600F/G (Geography 3413F/G).

0.5 course from Indigenous Governance, Policy and History: Indigenous Studies 2210F/G (History 2210F/G), Indigenous Studies 2807F/G (GSWS 2290F/G), Indigenous Studies 2919F/G, Indigenous Studies 3267F/G (History 3267F/G), Indigenous Studies 3722F/G (Political Science 3398F/G), Indigenous Studies 4024A/B (**Geography 4003A/B (the former Geography 3002A/B)**), Indigenous Studies 4818F/G (History 4818F/G), Sociology 2190F/G.

2.0 courses in Indigenous Studies (or cross-listed with Indigenous Studies) at the 2000-level or higher not taken from above.

DEPARTMENT OF POLITICAL SCIENCE

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

MINOR IN POLITICAL SCIENCE

Admission Requirements

Completion of first-year requirements, including Political Science 1020E or both Political Science 1021F/G and Political Science 1022F/G or both Political Science 1025F/G and Political Science 1026F/G, with a mark of at least 60%. **If upper-year students have not completed 1.0 courses as listed, they may select 1.0 courses from: Political Science 1030A/B and/or Political Science courses at the 2100-2199 level to meet admission requirements, as long as each course is completed with a grade of at least 60%. Political Science courses at the 2100-2199 level used for admission into the Minor may not be counted towards fulfillment of Minor module requirements.**

Module

4.0 courses:

~~3.0 Political Science courses numbered 2100–2199.~~

~~1.0 Political Science designated essay course (E, F or G) numbered 2200–2599.~~

4.0 Political Science courses at the 2100 level or above, of which at least 1.0 must be an essay course (E, F, or G).

HURON UNIVERSITY COLLEGE

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be introduced:

**ENGLISH 3695F/G
INDIGENOUS STORYTELLING AFTER THE INTERNET**

(Short Title: Indigenous Digital Stories)

Course Description

In this course, students study Indigenous digital storytelling from Turtle Island (North America), focusing on mediums introduced in the wake of the Internet, such as podcasts, video games, blogs, and social media. It will consider the complexities of building relationality in digital spaces and ethical practices of cyber-engagement.

Prerequisite(s): At least 60% in 1.0 English course from 1020-1999, or permission of the Department.

Extra Information: 3 hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

KING'S UNIVERSITY COLLEGE

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

SOCIOLOGY 2251A/B CROSS-BORDER CRIME

Course Description

This course will focus on criminality and criminalization with specific attention to the operation of these processes across international borders. The course will attend to domestic crimes that have cross-border elements; transnational crimes; and international crimes as well as the judicial systems that respond to these crimes.

Prerequisite(s): 1.0 course from Sociology at the 1000 level.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

SOCIOLOGY 3377F/G SPORTS, POWER, AND CRIME

Course Description

This course critically interrogates the intersections of sport, crime, deviance, and violence alongside the power relations that shape them.

Antirequisite(s): Sociology 3325F/G if taken in 2024-25.

Prerequisite(s): Sociology 2266A/B.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**SOCIOLOGY 3384A/B
SOCIOLOGY OF TOURISM**

Course Description

As a cultural phenomenon, tourism reveals contradictions and asymmetries within our social order. This course interrogates those tensions, situating key theoretical perspectives and debates within empirical case studies.

Antirequisite(s): Sociology 3326G if taken in 2025-26.

Prerequisite(s): 1.0 course from Sociology at the 1000 level.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**SOCIOLOGY 3405F/G
THINKING ABOUT SOCIETY**

Course Description

Mobilizing various theoretical frameworks, this course revisits some of the important social issues of our times, including power relations, media and knowledge, culture, and settler colonial and postcolonial conditions.

Antirequisite(s): Sociology 3404F/G, Sociology 4404F/G, Sociology 4405F/G.

Prerequisite(s): Sociology 2240E or Sociology 2270A/B and Sociology 2271A/B.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**SOCIOLOGY 3409F/G
THINKING CRIMINOLOGICALLY**

Course Description

Mobilizing various theoretical frameworks, this course revisits ‘mainstream’ criminology and engages with a range of contemporary perspectives on crime, criminalization, and crime control.

Antirequisite(s): Sociology 4409F/G.

Prerequisite(s): Sociology 2266A/B and enrolment in third or fourth year of one of the Criminology modules.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**ANALYTICS AND DECISION SCIENCES 2036A/B
PREDICTIVE ANALYTICS**

Course Description

Predictive analytics for business, accounting, and marketing with emphasis on multiple regression models, inference for regression parameters, categorical independent variables, model assumptions and diagnostics, goodness of fit and test of independence, analysis of variance for one factor and multiple factor designs, and model selection and validation.

Antirequisite(s): Biology 2244A/B, Data Science 2000A/B, Geography 2210A/B, Health Sciences 3801A/B, MOS 2242A/B, Psychology 2811A/B or the former Psychology 2810, Psychology 2801F/G or the former Psychology 2820E, Psychology 2830A/B, Psychology 2850A/B, Psychology 2851A/B, Sociology 2205A/B, Statistical Sciences 2035, Statistical Sciences 2141A/B, Statistical Sciences 2143A/B, Statistical Sciences 2244A/B, Statistical Sciences 2858A/B.

Prerequisite(s): Economics 2122A/B or Economics 2222A/B, or permission of the ~~department~~ **School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics**.

Extra Information: 3 hours, 2 laboratory hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

ANALYTICS AND DECISION SCIENCES 3864A/B
DATA VISUALIZATION AND ~~STATISTICAL ANALYSIS~~ MACHINE LEARNING

(Short Title: Data Vis & Machine Learning)

Course Description

Statistical programming in a high-level language, data visualization design principles, extracting insights from data visualization, data mining and machine learning, data classification; visualization of multivariate, time-series, and hierarchical data.

Prerequisite(s): 0.5 course from Analytics and Decision Sciences 2288F/G or Statistics 2864A/B; and 1.0 course from Economics 2122A/B, Economics 2222A/B, Economics 2123A/B, Economics 2223A/B or Analytics and Decision Sciences 2036A/B, Statistical Sciences 2035, Statistical Sciences 2857A/B, Statistical Sciences 2858A/B; or by permission of the School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours, 2 lab hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

ANALYTICS AND DECISION SCIENCES 4293F/G
PROFESSIONAL ANALYTICS

Course Description

Practical analytics and software tools explored through case analyses. Linear programming, statistical analysis, decision analysis, game theory, inventory analysis, queuing theory, simulation, Markovian decision model, and forecasting will be applied in a variety of scenarios.

Prerequisite(s): ~~Analytics and Decision Sciences 2298A/B~~ **Analytics and Decision Sciences 3293A/B**, ~~0.5 from Mathematics 1229A/B or Mathematics 1600A/B~~; 1.0 from Economics 2122A/B, Economics 2123A/B, Economics 2222A/B, Economics 2223A/B or Analytics and Decision Sciences 2036A/B, Statistical Sciences 2035, Statistical Sciences 2857A/B, Statistical Sciences 2858A/B. **Co-requisite(s): Analytics and Decision Sciences 3864A/B.**

Extra Information: 3 hours, 1 lab hour.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

CHILDHOOD AND YOUTH STUDIES 2211A/B
CHILDREN, ~~YOUTH, AND~~ CRIME, AND THE MEDIA

Course Description

This course explores judicial responses to and media representation of serious crimes committed by children and youths.

Pre-or Corequisite(s): Childhood and Youth Studies 1025F/G or the former Childhood and Social Institutions 1025F/G.

Extra Information: 3 hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

ECONOMICS 2145
SPECIAL TOPICS

Course Description

~~Topics to be posted by the King's College Department.~~ **Examination of selected topics in Economics. Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.**

Prerequisite(s): Economics 1021A/B and Economics 1022A/B, or **the former** Economics 1020 or the former Economics 021.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours. Students may not count more than one special topics course toward a degree without special permission from the ~~Department~~ **School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.**
Course Weight: 1.00

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 2170A/B
ENVIRONMENTAL ECONOMICS**

Course Description

This course in applied microeconomics examines the connections between market failure, environmental problems, and government regulation. Topics include externalities, cost benefit analysis, public goods, the global environment, and the valuation of non-market goods.

Antirequisite(s) at King's campus: Economics 2192A/B if taken at King's University College in 2023-24, **Economics 2172A/B and Economics 3374A/B.**

Prerequisite(s): ~~Economics 2150A/B or Economics 2260A/B~~ **Economics 1021A/B and Economics 1022A/B or permission from the Department.**

Extra Information: 3 hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

Administrative Note: Economics 2170A/B is also offered at Huron University College. The proposed revisions will apply only to the offering at King's University College.

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 2173F/G
SPECIAL TOPICS IN ECONOMICS**

Course Description

~~Topics to be posted by Department.~~ Examination of selected topics in Economics. Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.

Prerequisite(s): Consult the School for prerequisite(s) each year. Students without the stated prerequisite(s) MUST seek permission of the School or risk removal from the course.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours. Students may not count more than one full or equivalent special topics course in Economics toward a degree without special permission from the ~~Department~~ School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 2174F/G
SPECIAL TOPICS IN ECONOMICS**

Course Description

~~Topics to be posted by Department.~~ Examination of selected topics in Economics. Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.

Prerequisite(s): Consult the School for prerequisite(s) each year. Students without the stated prerequisite(s) MUST seek permission of the School or risk removal from the course.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours. Students may not count more than one full or equivalent special topics course in Economics toward a degree without special permission from the ~~Department~~ School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 2175F/G
SPECIAL TOPICS IN ECONOMICS**

Course Description

~~Topics to be posted by Department.~~ Examination of selected topics in Economics. Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.

Prerequisite(s): Consult the School for prerequisite(s) each year. Students without the stated prerequisite(s) MUST seek permission of the School or risk removal from the course.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours. Students may not count more than one full or equivalent special topics course in Economics toward a degree without special permission from the ~~Department~~ School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 2192A/B
SPECIAL TOPICS IN ECONOMICS**

Course Description

~~Topics to be posted by Department.~~ Examination of selected topics in Economics. Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.

Prerequisite(s): Consult the School for prerequisite(s) each year. Students without the stated prerequisite(s) MUST seek permission of the School or risk removal from the course.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours. Students may not count more than one full or equivalent special topics course in Economics toward a degree without special permission from the ~~Department~~ School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 2193A/B
SPECIAL TOPICS IN ECONOMICS**

Course Description

~~Topics to be posted by Department.~~ Examination of selected topics in Economics. Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.

Prerequisite(s): Consult the School for prerequisite(s) each year. Students without the stated prerequisite(s) MUST seek permission of the School or risk removal from the course.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours. Students may not count more than one full or equivalent special topics course in Economics toward a degree without special permission from the ~~Department~~ School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 2194A/B
SPECIAL TOPICS IN ECONOMICS**

Course Description

~~Topics to be posted by Department.~~ Examination of selected topics in Economics. Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.

Prerequisite(s): Consult the School for prerequisite(s) each year. Students without the stated prerequisite(s) MUST seek permission of the School or risk removal from the course.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours. Students may not count more than one full or equivalent special topics course in Economics toward a degree without special permission from the ~~Department~~ School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 2195A/B
SPECIAL TOPICS IN ECONOMICS**

Course Description

~~Topics to be posted by Department.~~ Examination of selected topics in Economics. Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.

Prerequisite(s): Consult the School for prerequisite(s) each year. Students without the stated prerequisite(s) MUST seek permission of the School or risk removal from the course.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours. Students may not count more than one full or equivalent special topics course in Economics toward a degree without special permission from the ~~Department~~ School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 2198F/G
SPECIAL TOPICS**

Course Description

~~Please consult Department for current offerings.~~ Examination of selected topics in Economics. Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.

Prerequisite(s): Economics 2150A/B or Economics 2260A/B and Economics 2152A/B or Economics 2220A/B, or permission of the ~~Department~~ School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.

Extra Information: 3 hours. Students may not count more than one full or equivalent special topics course in Economics toward a degree without special permission from the ~~Department~~ School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 2199F/G
SPECIAL TOPICS**

Course Description

~~Please consult Department for current offerings.~~ **Examination of selected topics in Economics. Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.**

Prerequisite(s): Economics 2150A/B or Economics 2260A/B and Economics 2152A/B or Economics 2220A/B, or permission of the ~~Department~~ **School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.**

Extra Information: 3 hours. Students may not count more than one full or equivalent special topics course in Economics toward a degree without special permission from the ~~Department~~ **School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.**

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 3373A/B
SPECIAL TOPICS IN ECONOMICS**

Course Description

~~Topics to be posted by School.~~ **Examination of selected topics in Economics. Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.**

Prerequisite(s): Consult the School for prerequisite(s) each year. Students without the stated prerequisite(s) MUST seek permission of the School or risk removal from the course.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours. Students may not count more than one full or equivalent special topics course in Economics toward a degree without special permission from the ~~Department~~ **School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.**

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 3376F/G
SPECIAL TOPICS IN ECONOMICS**

Course Description

~~Topics to be posted by School.~~ Examination of selected topics in Economics.
Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.

Prerequisite(s): Consult the School for prerequisite(s) each year. Students without the stated prerequisite(s) MUST seek permission of the School or risk removal from the course.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours. Students may not count more than one full or equivalent special topics course in Economics toward a degree without special permission from the ~~Department~~ School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 3377F/G
SPECIAL TOPICS IN ECONOMICS**

Course Description

~~Topics to be posted by School.~~ Examination of selected topics in Economics.
Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.

Prerequisite(s): Consult the School for prerequisite(s) each year. Students without the stated prerequisite(s) MUST seek permission of the School or risk removal from the course.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours. Students may not count more than one full or equivalent special topics course in Economics toward a degree without special permission from the ~~Department~~ School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 3391A/B
SPECIAL TOPICS IN ECONOMICS: MICROECONOMICS**

Course Description

An analysis of current topics in Microeconomics. ~~Topics to be posted by the Department.~~ **Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.**

Prerequisite(s): Economics 2221A/B or Economics 2153A/B; Economics 2223A/B or Economics 2123A/B; Economics 2261A/B or Economics 2151A/B.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ECONOMICS 3392A/B
SPECIAL TOPICS-MACROECONOMICS**

Course Description

An analysis of current topics in Macroeconomics. ~~Topics to be posted by the Department.~~ **Topics and course outlines available at the beginning of each term.**

Prerequisite(s): Economics 2221A/B, Economics 2223A/B, Economics 2261A/B.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**MANAGEMENT AND ORGANIZATIONAL STUDIES 3335A/B
INTRODUCTION TO DATA SCIENCE FOR MOS**

Course Description

This course will focus on predictive analytical methods with a strong focus on statistical techniques needed in the field of Management to collaborate with data scientists, analysts, and other information professionals. Topics include: Database Management using SQL, Data Science computational techniques in Python, Data Visualization, and basic Machine Learning techniques.

Prerequisite(s): MOS 2242A/B **or Economics 2222A/B.**

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Administrative Note: Management and Organizational Studies 3335A/B is also offered at Main Campus and Huron University College. The proposed revisions will apply only to the offering at King's University College.

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**MANAGEMENT AND ORGANIZATIONAL STUDIES 4310A/B
ADVANCED CORPORATE FINANCE**

Course Description

This is an advanced core course in corporate finance theory and financial management. It focuses primarily on the analysis of long-term financial management decisions and the application of appropriate techniques. Topics covered include the cost of capital, capital budgeting, capital structure, dividend policy, leasing, and mergers and acquisitions.

Antirequisite(s): MOS 3311A/B.

Prerequisite(s): MOS 3310A/B or permission of the ~~department~~ **School of Management, Economics, and Mathematics.**

Extra Information: 3 hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**POLITICAL SCIENCE 1021F/G
PEOPLE, POWER AND THE STATE**

Course Description

This introduction to politics emphasizes how people and the state use power to achieve political aims. Students will learn essential concepts (power, authority, democracy, freedom) and influential ideologies (liberalism, conservatism, socialism, feminism, nationalism), explore our institutional landscape (legislatures, executives, the judiciary) and agents of change (parties, media, interest groups).

Antirequisite(s): Political Science 1020E, **Political Science 1025F/G, Political Science 1026F/G.**

Extra Information: 2 hour lecture, 1 hour tutorial.
Course Weight: 0.50

Administrative Note: Political Science 1021F/G is also offered at Main Campus. The proposed revisions will apply only to the offering at King's University College.

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**POLITICAL SCIENCE 1022F/G
GLOBAL POLITICS AND CONTEMPORARY (DIS)ORDER**

Course Description

This course introduces students to the study of global politics. Drawing on a range of perspectives, the course examines the most significant issues in global affairs such as war, peace, terrorism, security, diplomacy, nationalism, global justice, global environment, globalization, global governance, poverty, development, human rights, gender, and inequality.

Antirequisite(s): Political Science 1020E, **Political Science 1025F/G, Political Science 1026F/G.**

Extra Information: 2 hour lecture, 1 hour tutorial.
Course Weight: 0.50

Administrative Note: Political Science 1022F/G is also offered at Main Campus. The proposed revisions will apply only to the offering at King's University College.

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**POLITICAL SCIENCE 3324F/G
INTRODUCTION TO RESEARCH METHODS IN POLITICAL SCIENCE**

Course Description

This course introduces students to a range of methodological approaches to questions in political science. Students will become familiar with qualitative and quantitative data sources and ways of using each to address political issues.

Antirequisite(s) at Main campus: Political Science 2535F/G or Political Science 3325F/G, Health Sciences 2801A/B, Psychology 2800E, Psychology 2820E, and Sociology 2206A/B. **Antirequisite(s)** at Huron campus: Health Sciences 2801A/B, the former Psychology 2800E, the former Psychology 2820E, Psychology 2830A/B, and Sociology 2206A/B. **Antirequisite(s)** at King's campus: Health Sciences 2801A/B, the former Psychology 2800E, the former Psychology 2820E, Psychology 2830A/B, **Social Work 2206A/B**, ~~and~~ Sociology 2206A/B, **and** Political Science 2325F/G.

Prerequisite(s): Enrolment in Political Science; or Politics and International Relations modules.

Extra Information: 2 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**SOCIOLOGY 3387F/G
SURVEILLANCE, SECURITY AND SOCIETY**

Course Description

An examination of how surveillance has become ubiquitous and taken for granted in contemporary society. Beyond general themes of surveillance studies, such as control, visibility, classification, authentication, etc., this course focuses on the role of surveillance in social sorting and (in)security in society.

Antirequisite(s): ~~Sociology 3325F/G if taken in 2017-18~~, Political Science 3387F/G.

Prerequisite(s): Enrolment in 3rd or 4th year in either Political Science, **Politics and International Relations**, ~~or~~ Sociology, **or Criminology**.

Extra Information: 3 hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN CRIMINOLOGY

Admission Requirements

Completion of first-year requirements with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 70% in 3.0 principal courses, including Sociology 1020, Sociology 1020W/X or Sociology 1021E plus 2.0 additional courses, with no mark in these principal courses below 60%.

Module

9.0 courses:

3.0 courses: Sociology 2205A/B and Sociology 2206A/B, Sociology 3306A/B, Sociology 3310F/G, ~~Sociology 4404F/G, Sociology 4409F/G~~ **Sociology 3409F/G, Sociology 4446F/G.**

1.0 course from: Sociology 2240E or Sociology 2270A/B and Sociology 2271A/B.

~~1.0 0.5 course:~~ Sociology 2266A/B ~~and Sociology 2267A/B.~~

~~2.0 2.5 courses from:~~ **Sociology 2211F/G**, Sociology 2223A/B, **Sociology 2251A/B**, Sociology 2253A/B, Sociology 2256A/B, **Sociology 2257A/B**, Sociology 2260A/B, **Sociology 2267A/B**, Sociology 2268F/G, Sociology 2291F/G, Sociology 2293F/G. (A 0.5 course from a related area may be counted toward this requirement; see Department for currently approved courses.)

1.5 courses from: Sociology 3325F/G, Sociology 3327F/G Sociology 3340F/G, Sociology 3345F/G, Sociology 3349F/G, Sociology 3356F/G, Sociology 3357F/G, Sociology 3358F/G, Sociology 3359F/G, Sociology 3361F/G, Sociology 3363F/G, Sociology 3366F/G, Sociology 3371F/G, Sociology 3375F/G, **Sociology 3377F/G**, Sociology 3379F/G, Sociology 3382F/G, Sociology 3387F/G, Sociology 3390F/G, Sociology 3391F/G.

0.5 course from: in Sociology at the 4000 level **at King's.**

Please note that Sociology 2205A/B and Sociology 2206A/B are mandatory in year 2 of the Honours Specialization, and Sociology 3306A/B and Sociology 3310F/G are mandatory in year 3 of the Honours Specialization.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

MAJOR IN ECONOMICS

Admission Requirements

Completion of first-year requirements, including the following 2.0 courses with an average of 70% and no grade less than 60% in any subject: Economics 1021A/B and Economics 1022A/B; 0.5 from Mathematics 1230A/B, Calculus 1000A/B AND 0.5 from Mathematics 1229A/B, Mathematics 1600A/B, Calculus 1301A/B, or Calculus 1501A/B.

Note: If a student is required to take Mathematics 0110A/B IN ADDITION TO the 1.0 required first-year Mathematics courses listed above it will count toward the 20.0 required courses for the student's degree at King's University College as needed. Mathematics 0110A/B is NOT a substitute for the other 1.0 required first-year Mathematics courses.

Module

6.0 courses:

3.0 courses: Economics 2220A/B, Economics 2221A/B, Economics 2222A/B, Economics 2223A/B, Economics 2260A/B, Economics 2261A/B.

1.0 course from: Economics 3313E; or Economics 3378A/B and Economics 3398F/G.

2.0 additional Economics courses at the 2200 ~~or 3000~~-level **or above**.

Students who have completed Economics 2150A/B, Economics 2151A/B, Economics 2152A/B or Economics 2153A/B with an average of 75% and no grade less than 70% may be admitted to the Major module in Economics and may be exempted from Economics 2260A/B, Economics 2261A/B, Economics 2220A/B or Economics 2221A/B, respectively. Students who have completed Economics 2122A/B, Economics 2123A/B, or Economics 2141A/B with no grade less than 70% may be exempted from Economics 2222A/B, Economics 2223A/B or Economics 2210A/B, respectively.

Students enrolled in a major in Economics and a major in Sociology or Health Sciences must replace Economics 2222A/B with another 0.5 course at the 2200 ~~or 3000~~-level **or above** in Economics. Sociology 2205A/B or the former Health Sciences 2800 may be used as a prerequisite for Economics 2223A/B.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN SOCIOLOGY

Enrolment in this module is limited. Meeting the minimum requirements does not guarantee that students wishing to transfer into this module will be offered enrollment.

Admission Requirements

Completion of first-year requirements with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 70% in 3.0 principal courses, including Sociology 1020, Sociology 1020W/X or Sociology 1021E, plus 2.0 additional courses, with no mark in these principal courses below 60%.

Module

9.0 courses:

3.0 courses: Sociology 2205A/B, Sociology 2206A/B, Sociology 3306A/B, Sociology 3310F/G, ~~Sociology 4404F/G, Sociology 4405F/G~~ **Sociology 3405F/G, Sociology 4446F/G**.

1.0 course from: Sociology 2240E or Sociology 2270A/B plus Sociology 2271A/B.

0.5 course: Sociology 2248A/B.

2.5 additional courses in Sociology at the 2200 level or above.

1.5 additional courses in Sociology at the 3000 level or above.

0.5 additional course in Sociology at the 4000 level **at King's**.

Please note that Sociology 2205A/B and Sociology 2206A/B are mandatory in year 2 of the Honours Specialization, and Sociology 3306A/B and Sociology 3310F/G are mandatory in year 3 of the Honours Specialization.